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FY 2016 summary

Financial metrics

Revenue (£'m)

Headcount

Operating costs (E'm)

Overview

»  FINK1t® our new business unit which enables retail
banks to transform their digital services launched
dunng the year generating initial revenues in the
second half of FY 2016, and a positive response
from current and potential chents and partners

» Full year revenue of £676m declined 24 7%
compared to the prior year as anticipated but
stable half-on-half and n line with previous
guidance

»  Monitise reported half-year EBITDA profitability of
£06m In the second half of the year in line with
previous guidance

+ Cash flow stabilised with positive cash from
operations In the second half, and cash usage
down 84% compared to the same period in FY
2015

« Improved transparency with disclosure of revenue
and EBITDA of six business units including the
new FINKIt® business

Read more In the operations and financial review
page 4

Find out more about Monitise’s business model
page 7

Stay up to date online
WWW monitise.com

Forward-looking statements

This report includes forward-looking statements Whiist these forward-looking
statements are made in good faith they are based upon the information avaitable
to Monitise at the date of this report and upon current expectations projections
market conditions and assumptions about future events These forward-looking
statements are subject to risks uncertainties and assumptions about the Group
and should be treated with an appropriate degree of caution

Monitise plc

Annual Report 2016 1
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Chairman’s statement

Peter Ayhlffe

The past year has seen an
unprecedented amount of
¢change throughout both the
business and the Board
However, | am pleased to report
that the outcome Is a business
which 1s much better managed,
and much more appropnately
structured for successful longer-
term profitable growth based
on its business unit focus,
FINKIt® platform and assoclated
capabihities

Within this Report you will find full details
of the radical restructuring of the business,
including the impairment of £176 9m of
assets, undertaken by our new Chief
Executive, Lee Cameron, since he took
office in September 2015 Lee’s deep
knowiedge of both the market and Monitise
enabled this change of leadership to be
implemented smoothly, and my Board
colleagues and | have been impressed by
the way in which Lee and his new senior
team tackled the task of turning Monitise
into an EBITDA profitable company in the
second half of FY 2016

In November 2015 Brad Petzer resigned
from the Board and his role as Chief
Financial Officer Brad had been with
Monitise for two years and on behalf of the
Board, | would ke to thank him for his
contribution to the Company

In March 2016, we were pleased to announce
the appointment of Gavin James as Chief
Operating Officer {COQ) following his work
as an advisor to the group in the preceding
five months Gavin s a Chartered
Accountant who has significant previous
Board experience having held CFO, COO
and CEQ gositions at both isted and private
companies Including Vertex Group 150oft plc,
Morse plc and Menvier Swain Group plc As
COO, Gavin assumed responsibihity for the
Finance function and the role of CFQ Gavin
became an Executive Drector of the
company, effective from 1 July 2016 We
were delighted to welcome Gavin to the
Board his wealth of experience and success
In managing companies in transition 1s highty
beneficial to Monitise Lee and Gavin have
formed an excellent partnership and are
extremely focused on delivering owur
business unit strategy

During the year we also saw the departure
of three other Directors Stephen Shurrock
who was the nominated Non-Executive
Director for Santander and Telefomca,
resigned following his departure from hus
role at Telefonica Due to the streamiining of
the business the Directors agreed that a
smaller Board was more appropriate for this
stage in Monitise s development As a result,
Non-Executive Directors Colin Tucker and
Paulette Garafalo, stepped down from the
Board | would ke to thank Stephen,
Paulette and Colin for their commitment and
excellent support and adwvice duning their
tenure on the Board In Colins case his
tenure was over an erght-year period during
which he also served con all our Board
committees

During the year we entered into ¢iscussions
with g party interested in acquiring Monitise
Content trading as myvouchercodes ¢o uk
one of the UK s largest and most successful
brands I1n that space Having inifiated a
process to determine whether the approach
would generate appropriate value for this
business, we decided that the price being
offered did not achieve this when compared
to the strong growth and profitable
performance of the business We concluded
that Monitise Content was of more value to
our shareholders by being retained within
the Group

Creating a stable more transparent business
was essential to enable Monitise to achieve
its objective of longer-term profitable
growth The current year will of course brning
its own fresh challenges as a corporate
repasitioning and recovery of this scale
cannot be implemented overnight But my
fellow Directors and | believe that we have
the right corporate strategy and leadership
to complete the task

Finally the Board would once agamn like to
thank our customers, partners, staff and
shareholders for their continued support
over the past year

Annual General Meeting

The Annual General Meeting of the Company
will be held on 19 October 2016 at 1000 a m
UK terme at the offices of Canaccord Genuity,
88 Wood Street London EC2V 7QR

Peter Ayliffe
Chairman
7 September 2016

Monitise plc Annual Report 2016
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Chief Executive Officer’s review

Lee Cameron

in my first year as CEQ we have
made substantial progress In
making Monitise a more stable
and simpler business which 15
well positioned to achieve
profitability At the EBITDA level
we recorded a small profit in the
second half of the year Qur
restructuring has halved
operating costs in the second
half of the year and reduced
headcount by 41 per cent
compared to a year ago while
maintaining our high client
service levels and launching our
FINKit® digital banking product

Upon my appointment as Chief Executive a
year ago, | set the company three key
objectives first, stabilise the business,
second, simplify the organisation and third,
accelerate cur transition from a group of
companies whose revenues have
historically depended on product licences,
to one where prosperity will be driven from
sustainable income across all lines of
business and, 1n particular, from chents
using FINKit*, our new platform, whtch
enables banks and financial services
organisations to transform their digital
services Twelve months on, | am pleased to
report that we have made substantial
progress in delivering the first two, and | am
very encouraged by the positive reaction of
our current and prospective clients and
partners with regard to the third

we undertock a substantial corporate
restructuring during the year to simplify the
business which enabled us to reduce
operating costs In the second half of the year
by 45 per cent when compared to the first
half OQur number of employees has
decreased by 41 per cent during the period
while we have coentinued to maintain high
levels of serwice to chents and successfully
launched FINKIt* 1t has been a significant
penod of c¢hange, especially for our
employees The professionalism  and
dedication demonstrated by both our
current staff and those who are no longer
with the Group has been exemplary

A simpler organisation enables greater
transparency for all stakeholders It also
allows us to identify each business unit and
empower thewr respective management
teams to have responsibiity and
accountability for ther approved business
plans [t 1s important to me that our external
financiat reporting reflects the clanty we
have established internally to allow all
stakeholders to track each business’
performance You will find detall on the
financial performance of each business unit
In the Operations and Financial Review on
page 4

Most importantly for the future prospects of
Manitise, the final objective was to
accelerate the transibhon of our business
model and make a success of FINKit® This s
not wholly 1n our control and 1s dependent
on c¢lients and partners working with us
Whilst 1t 15 taking longer than we had
anticipated to conclude long-term FINKit*
contracts we have recorded our first FINKit®
revenues from clients in the second half of
the year and | remain confident, due to the
positive engagement we have had with
clients that we will be able to report our first
contracts in the near future

The market need for the services offered by
FiNKit* continues to grow drniven by the
requirement of our clients to find ways of
delivering therr customers digital needs
guickly, cost effectively and securely
Regulatory changes also exert pressure on
our clents to adopt new ways of serving
their customers as they comply with new
standards We are in dally dialogue with
banks who have expressed a need for
capability that can be delivered by FINKit® |
am also encouraged by the support and level
of vahdation we have received from our
strategic partrer IBM n helping us bring
FINKIt®* to the market

FINKit® builds upon the expertise and
reputation that Monitise has estabhshed over
the last decade by offering components of
capability infrastructure and the
environment that allow banks to work with
Monitise and our FinTech partners to create
their own customer propositions The
Business Overview section of this report
describes FINKIt* and its benefits in more
detall

We have achieved a great deal over the past
12 months and have a clear vision of what
still needs to be done but we remain a
business in transition

Qutlook

We expect FINKIt® revenue to grow strongly
albeit from a low base As previously stated
overall Group revenue 1s expected to decline,
driven by the full year revenue impact of the
completion of  professicnal  services
contracts during FY 2016 FY 2017 will
benefit from the full year effect of cost
savings made during FY 2016 At 31 August
2016 headcount had further fallen to 469

FINKIt* represents a significant opportunity
for Monitise to establish long-term
sustainable growth and we will continue to
invest In developing that part of our bustness
throughout the current financial year
Overall capital expenditure requirement is
expected to be lower than in FY 2016 and we
will continue to evaluate all the Groups
assets to make sure that they remain
relevant to our strategy and add to our value

Lee Camearon
Chief Executive Officer
7 September 2016
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Operations and Financial review

Gavin James

Summary Financial Results

Revenue

EBITDA!

Loss before tax

Capex

Cash from operations
Cash usage?

Cash balance
Headcount {period end)

FYy 2015

Total

£m

B 7
(41 8
(227 4)
450y
(50 3)
(106 2)

ga8

850

FY 2016

Hl

£'m

33.4
{20.2)
(210.5)
@5
223
(36.4)

53.4

627

FY 2016
H2
£'m
342
06
{32.6)
(1.6)
0.4
(11.9)
421
500

'EBITDA 15 defined as operating loss before exceptiona! items depreciation amartisation imparments and share-based payments charge

? Cash usage does not include the impact of foreign exchange movements

FY 2016
Totalt
£'m

67.6
(19 6)
(243.1)
(9.1)
(219)
(48 3)

421

500

Overview

The year ended 30 June 2016 has seen a significant restructuring of the organisation, including headcount property requirements and the
Group being managed as six separate businesses each working under a plan to achieve or improve profitability This business structure was
put In place in the second half of the fiscal year and Monitise now reports revenue and EBITDA for each business segment FY 2015 estimate

comparative figures are provided

Revenue EBITDA

FY 2015 FY 2016 FY 2015 FY 2016

Em £'m £m £'m
Americas 259 19.1 52) (3.1)
Europe 458 30,3 (18 3 49
FINKit - 05 23 (38)
Create 145 57 18 (1.2)

MEA 73 81 11 11

Content 69 99 10 27
Central/unallocated (107 (6 0) (199 (10 4)
Total 837 67.6 (41 8) (19.6)

The restructuring has been undertaken n a phased approach
starting with identification of the optimal organisation structure This
was followed by the structuring of each of the business units
identified in a planned approach to attain profitability in a reasonable
timescale whilst structuring the businesses in a manner that provides
flexibility in their cost bases to take account of future changes In

activity

This restructuring s 10 its final stages with activity continuing to
ensure vanability of cost in our core Europe and Americas delivery

orgamsations

The results of the first two phases of the plan have been realised in
the second haif of the financial year reflecting a £20 Om reduction in
costs by comparison to the first half, and resulted in EBITDA of £06m

for the second half compared to a loss of £20 2m in the first haif

Prospectively we anticipate the business unit structure to evolve as
the operational management of the Group changes to reflect the

development of FINKIt*

Business Segments

Americas

The Americas business has seen a reduction »1 revenues and EBITDA
loss as a result of our decision to cease selling perpetuzl licences to
customers, the loss of some customer contracts taken in-house and
reduced revenue from fixed price contracts signed in the prior year
primarily 10 relation to software version upgrades Action 1s being
taken to ensure that our cost base 1s adaptable to activity levels
which will enable an improvement in the profitability of this business
despite the full year negative impact on FY 2017 revenue

Europe

The European business has seen a reduction In revenues year-on-year
due in part to the decision to change our business model leading as
expected to areduction in iicence revenue from €9 @m in FY 2015 to
E1tm in the current year and due to the completion of some large
loss-making development projects Despite this decreased revenue
base the EBITDA losses of the business have declined reflecting the
restructuring that has taken place the ending of a number of the
large FY 2015 loss making development projects and reduced

4 Monitise plc
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resource activity in the second half of the year in relation to a fixed
revenue partner relationship In FY 2017 the action to ensure our Cosi
base 1s more variable with activity will offset the impact of revenue
reduchion as a result of the full year impact of the projects completed
in FY 2016

FINKit

In FY 2016 we saw the FINKit* business record its first revenues as
chents signed up to paid testing of the platform The costsin FY 2015
reflected the costs of a team managing the imtial design and buld
of the offening and developing the proposition This team was
extended throughout FY 2016 and further investment was made to
continue the development of the platform and capabdities as the
organisation prepares itself to take on operational clients

Monitise Create

The Create business (s going through a transformation with a new
management team and a relaunch planned for later this calendar
year Revenues in FY 2015 benefited from E70m of Monitise
anginated work both supporting the Group and its cltents largely
through professional services projects, which reduced to £15m in FY
2016 A key drver of this reduction 1s the changing business maodel
of Monitise In addition, external revenues in FY 2015 were £7 5m
compared to £4 2mn FY 2016, driven in-part by fewer new business
wins In FY 2015 impacting the flow through of business into FY 2016
and the management transition in the first half of FY 2016 As a result
of the reduction in revenues the business has incurred EBITDA losses
of £12m 1n the year to 30 June 2016 as ocpposed to EBITDA profits
of £18m n FY 2015

Momitise MEA

The MEA business performed well in the year increasing revenues
from £73m to £8Im EBITDA in FY 2016 of £11m was consistent
compared with FY 2015 of £17m Through the year the business has
continued to broaden its customer base in the Gulf region and
Turkish markets obtaining new clients MEA continues to provide
technology and engineering support to other Group businesses

Maonitise Content

The Content business saw strong progress with growth in revenues
and profit in the year with a major contributing factor being the
overall growth in visits (57% year-on-year) to the UK voucher
business - myvouchercodes couk

The business saw further success with a number of nitilatives
including @ modification of its search engine marketing techniques
resulting i a positive uphft of keyword rankings within search
engines that consumers use to search for retalers’ offers
Additionally, positive investment in developing retailer relationships
to secure nghts to drive more traffic through investment in building
a more engaged consumer base enabled the business to grow visits
to myvouchercodes ¢o uk through CRM initiatives

With positive growth 1n the UK the business invested in its
international propositions and saw visit growth of 27% year-on-year
in the French market through codespromotion fr and launched a
number of new mternational propositions

Group

Central and unallocated revenue and costs

The unallocated revenues represent the elimination of intra group
revenues The EBITDA reflects the level of central costs which have
dechned from £19 9m n FY 2015 to £104m in FY 2016 There was a
material reduction in central EBITDA loss in HZ compared to Hl
driven by the cost-reduction efforts described above

Revenues
Revenues in FY 2016 declined by £22 im from £89 7m to £676m The
drivers of the dechine in revenue were the Europe Create and

Americas businesses In Europe and Americas the decision to
transition the business model led to an antictpated fall in licence
revenues from £ 9m to £11m A declimning market for our customised
solutions led to a reduction in Development and Integration revenue
from £44 7m to £336m Create was impacted by the change in
management and the Americas business also saw a reduction in
services revenues This was offset by an improvement in the Content
revenue which was up from £6 9m to £99m

Gross margin

The calculation of gross margin has been revised in the year to
include media costs in the Content business that are variable with
activity within cost of sales These amount to £18m in FY 2016 and
£11m (n FY 2015 and were previously included in operating costs
There was no impact on EBITDA as a result of this reclassification

Gross margin improved in the year from 506% to 575% The
improvement in gross margin results from the increasing contribution
from our Content business reduction in third party cost of sales and
the completion of the large fixed price customised solution projects
noted in last year s report

EBITDA and Operating costs

The EBITDA loss in the year was £196m as compared to £418m in
FY 2015 with the company reaching EBITDA profitabity of E0 6m
In H2 FY 2016 The significant improvement in EBITDA results from
the restructuring and cost reduction exercise initiated towards the
end of the first half of FY 2016 The operating costs in FY 2016 were
£58 5m, a reduction of £28 7m from £87 2m reported in FY 2015 The
reduction in cost for the year was predominantly headcount related
with people costs reducing by £24 5m from £692m to £447m
Additional savings were made through a reduction in property costs
as less space 15 required and a tightening of other costs generally

In the second haif of the year benefiting from the restructuring
exercise, operating costs reduced from £378m in H1 FY 2016 to
£207m in H2 FY 2016 a reduction of £177m

Headcount as at 30 June 2016 was 500 by comparison to 850 as at
30 June 2015

In addition to the activity to reduce costs initiated s the first half of
the year duning the second half we have continued the restructuring
programme with the objective of converting fixed ar semi-fixed costs
of supporting our core Eurcpe and Amencas delivery orgarnisattons
into a more varniable form This will enable the Group to further
manage Its cost base as existing long term contracts reach therr
natural end

Other costs

Depreciation and Amortisation

Depreciation was £2 8rmin the year (FY 2015 £4 2m) Amortisation
in the year of £256m (FY 2015 £207m) includes amortisation of
acquired intangible assets of £212m capitalised development costs
of £20m and purchased scoftware hcences of £23m The useful
economic ives of acquired intangible assets were reviewed In
conjunction with the impairment review resulting in reduced hves for
some customer and technology assets and a consequent increase in
armortisation in the period to £212m (FY 2015 £17m)

Impairments

Impairments of £176 9m have been recorded relating to property
plant and equipment £3 3m goodwill £162 7m, customer contracts
£75m and £25m of acquired technology and other assets and
E£Q 9m of investment i joint ventures reflecting the fact that no
further investment s currently planned for the Santander joint
venture which 15 not operationally active £1699m of these
impairments were announced In the H1 FY 2016 results

Monitise ple  Annual Report 2016 5
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Operations and Financial review

continued

These impairments all relate to assets that do not drive sufficient
economic returns 1n the near term to support thew carrying values
The mpairments reflect evolving market conditions growth
prospects for certain platforms and changes in customers approach
to technology prowision

Share-based payments

The share-based payments charge of £16 5m (FY 2015 £280m) is
largely comprised of earn-out share-based payments relating to the
acquisitions of Grapple Pozitron and Markco Media as well as Group
employee share option grants The faltin the charge when compared
to FY 2015 s largely a result of options which lapsed as a result of
people leaving the Group

Exceptiona!l costs

A net charge of £3 5m for exceptional tems has been taken in the
year (FY 2015 £342m) The make-up of the net charge s
summarised as follows

FY 2015 FY 2016
£m E'm
Excepticnal income - (6.9)
Onerous contracts 285 32)
Surplus property costs 18 44
Contingent consideration adjustment 13 -
Restructuring costs 45 87
Other (19 0S5
Total 342 35

Cash flow and funds

Exceptional income represents payments received following the
restructuning of customer contracts which are not anticipated to
recur The credit in relation to the onerous contracts reflects the
settlement of some of the obligations recognised in prior periods at
amounts less than those provided The surplus property provision
relates to provision for excess property following the reduction in
headcount in both the UK and US The restructuring costs are the
costs relating to the reduction in headcount and the associated
activities to improve the variability of our cost base

Loss before tax
The Group reported a loss befere tax of £243 1m compared to a loss
of £227 4m in FY 2015

Tax

A tax credit of £9 7m was recorded in the year (FY 2015 £39m) in
both cases principally relating to non-cash movements on the un-
winding of deferred tax recognised in relation to acquired intangible
assets The Group has an unrecognised deferred tax asset of £79 Om
which i1s avalable for offset against future tax expenses In the
companies in which these losses arose

Statutory loss after tax

The statutory loss after tax for the year was £233 4m (FY 2015
£2236m) The loss in the year 15 driven by an improved EBITDA
resulting from cost reductions across the Group lower share based
payment charges and lower exceptional costs offset by higher
impairment charges

Loss per share
The basic and chluted loss per share was 10 5p (FY 2015 108p)

The Group ended the year wtth gross cash balances of £421m compared to £88 8m at 30 June 2015 A summary of the cash flows are

as follows

FY 2015 FY 2015 FY 2015 FY 2016 FY 2016 FY 2016

H H2 Total H1 H2 Total

£m Em €m E'm £'m £m
Cash used in operations (380) 12 3} (503) (22 3) o4 (21 9)
Capex 26 5 4n €0.6) ©2) [CR:))
Capitalisation of intangibles (233 {786) (A09) (6.9) (13) 82
Joint venture and other 03 a4 an {0.3) 0.1 {0.2)
Free cash flow (638) (328) (96 4) (30.1) (1.0) (31.1)
Exceptional items 37D G (95) (5.9) (10 1) (16.0)
Othar 491 5 476 (0.4) {09) (1.3)
Total cash flow a8 2) 40n (583) (36.4) (12 0) (48.4)

Cash flow Provisions

The reduction in costs during the period has led to a significant
reduction in cash usage n particular in the second half of the year
reflecting the impact of the restructuring The camital expenditure
and 1n paruicular the capitalisation of internal activity were much
reduced in the year as the core build of the FINKit® platform nears
compietion Inthe future we plan to focus our develcpment primarily
towards specific customer requirements as opposed to generic
buiids and hence would expect future cash flow in this regard to be
lower than pnior periods The expenditure on exceptional items
reflects both exit costs related to staff reductions of £53m payments
In relation to onerous contracts of £13 0m, and lump sum payments
in relation to settiement of onerous contracts of £41m, offset by
exceptional Income of £61m

At 30 June 2016 the Group carres total provisions of £189m
(FY 2015 £299m) These provisions comprise £16 7m for onerous
contracts including provistons for surplus property and £22m in
relation to the rematning cost base reduction Of these provisions the
restructuring costs are anticipated to be expended in FY 2017 whilst
the timing of the cash flows in relation to the onerous contracts are
subyect to the iming of subletting or assigning surplus property, and
the results of our efforts to negotiate settlements in relation to
onerous supply contracts

Gavin James
Chief QOperating Officer
7 September 2016
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Business model

Monitise Group - Business Overview

Monitise Group Is a specialist in financial services technology, focused on accelerating the digital transformation of banks and financial

institutions

Qur portfolio of platforms products and services are designed to help our clients around the world design, build and run services o customers
delivered over smartphone tablet PC and any other digital device safely and securely

The Group addresses industry requirements at both a global and local leve! having had over a decade of expenence of buillding and operating
digital services for some of the world’s most trusted financial services brands

The combined group consist of 6 business uniis

How we create value

1 Investing for the long term

wWe invest over the long term In future
capabihties like FINKIt®* to build a business
that has long term sustamable success

2 Driving efficiency

We underpin everyihing that we do with a
rngorous focus on operating efficiency By
ensuring that we have an efficient and agile
operating model we consistently drive down
costs to allow us to invest more where
clients gain greatest value

3 Investing in people

We nvest in our people because we
recognise that their talent and commitment
are critical to our success We aim to foster
a culture which encourages our people to
fulfil their potential and to strive for continual
improvement n all that they do enabling
them to achieve great things together

Group Strengths

1 Market leading innovation

We create and harness new technology in
order to give banks and financial service
providers access to the very best capabilities
to accelerate therr digital transformation

2 Customer focus

We are intimate with and /mmersed 1n the
local markets and sectors our clients operate
within We have a proven ability to address
tharr needs thanks to the strength of our
technical capabilities and our experience In
creating innovative propositions

I Qur expertise in service delivery

We have a proven ability to operate bank
grade digital services for milions of
customers on behalf of some of the world's
most trusted financials services brands

Growth Opportunities

1 Collaboration

The concept of collaborabion - or "co-
innovation™ - 1s becoming more important
within the financial services and technology
industries We wall continue to focus on
creating parinerships with estabhshed and
emerging financial technology companies
(FinTechs) to ensure we are the first choice
for those seeking access to the widest range
of capabihties

2 Transformation

We will focus on accelerating the digital
transformation of established retall banks
that increasingly need to move guicker to
respond to nsing custorner expectations and
competitive threats

3 Regulation

We will focus on supporting banks and
financial services prowiders who need to
comply with a package of measures being
introduced by regulators to ensure that their
customers benefit from technological
advances

Monitise plc  Annual Report 2016
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Business model

continued

Business Units at a Glance

Monitise FINKit®

FINKit® allows banks and other financial services companies to
innovate far more rapidly and cost effectively

Monitise FINKit* combines 4 key capabilities that together
empower banks to execute on innovation at speed safely and
securely

These capabilities include our platform and toolkit providing a
modern apphcation development and operations enviroriment
built from the ground up for bank grade security comphance and
performance a powerful agile engagement model underpinned
by FINKit*s continuous delivery tool chain an industry leading
partnership programme  exclusively focussed on enabling
collaboration between Banks and the FinTech community and a
team chosen for their ability to tackle challenging problems and
execute on innovation in the financial service sector with speed
and agility

Whether it 15 augmenting legacy systems, a greenfield project
or strategic digital transformation, FINKit* delivers innovation at
speed safely and securely

Monitise Europe

Monitise Europe s the orniginal business on which the Monitise
Group was founded Monmitise Europe provides bank-grade
mobile banking and digital services based on the Monitise
Enterprise platform (MEP)

Some of the UK s biggest financial services brands chose to
leverage ocur MEP capabilities to buld custom mobile banking
propasitions proven to drive high customer engagement in a
scalable and secure way

We have integrated the Monitise Europe cperation into the

FINKit®* business unit as we see signtficant synergies as our
clrents consider a transition path from MEP to FINKIt*®

Monitise Americas

Monitise Americas 15 a specialist in Mohile Banking, Enterprise
Alerting and SMS Banking products designed specifically to
meet the needs of the banks credit unions and financial services
providers in the Americas

Based on the secure and trusted Monitise Vantage Platform
(MVP) combmed with front end design, we provide a scalable
and proven product that 1s highly configurable to adcdress
customer needs

Ideal for banks who want a ready-to-go product we provide a
fullty integrated mokle first solution with full-scale 24/7 support
and a roadmap of new releases

Business Model

* Access fees

+ Platform usage and transaction fees for the use of the FINKIL®
platform to build and run digital services

« Revenue share with partners who have capabihties accessed
enhanced and facilitated by the FINKit* platform

* Professional service fees for a team of experts who help
design build and project manage the deployment of services
Inte @ production sandbox or operational environment

Target Clients
We are focused on banks and providers of financial services
mnitially in the UK and USA

“Banks' legacy systems make it difficult to access and consume
the services that they know customers want the process of
on-boarding proves both challenging and time consuming
FINKit*® provides the necessary blend of innovative and agile
technology with its roots in security and compliance which is
absolutely critical to resoiving the challenge *

George Kelsey, Head of Technology and Innovation,

Tesco Bank

Business Model

* Usage based fees for clients active use of the platform

* Professional service fees for a team of experts who help design
bulld and project manage developments on the MEP platform

+ Annual Support and Maintenance

Example Clients
RBS Co-operative Bank Clydesdale Bank and M&S Bank

"Our customers jova our market leading mobile app and we are
pleased that over four million benefit from banking on the move
with us Momitise have provided the platforrm to support our app
for over 6 years helping us to deliver a great service ™

Martin Wise, Managing Director, Digital for Natwest and
Roval Bank of Scotland

Business Model

+ Usage based fees for customer active use of the platform

+ Product upgrade fees for new releases

« Professional service fees for a team of experts who help
design build and project manage developments

+ Annual Support and Maintenance

Example Chents
Bank of Montreal, BankFund Staff Federal Credit Union and Regions

“Mobile Banking powered by Monitise MVFP has been the most
easily accepted technology that we have launched The iPhone
and Android Apps are intuitive and the adoption of the Mobile
Check Deposit feature has exceeded our expectations becoming
the top channel for check deposits just 8 months after the launch
of Monitise Mobile Banking

Tim Elmore, Chuef Information Officer, BankFund Staff
Federal Credht Union
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Monitise MEA

Monitise MEA 1s focused on powering digital innovation through
inteligent design and crafted technology We bring together a
digital design studio and software developrment house under one
roof to builld breakthrough products for cur clients

An expert on transactional digital solutions we provide our
clients with access to Software Developers, UX and Ul Designers
Gualty Assurance Engineers, Business and System Analysts
Project Managers and Scrum Masters in order to deliver turnkey
products and premium services to power winning digital
strateglies We enhance these solutions with our add on products
scaling from push messaging to mul{l factor authentication

Monitise Create

Monitise Create 1S an award winning London based digital
strategy design and engineering studio collaborating with
ambitious businesses to create the future of digital in a broad
range of sectors including financial services retaill hospitality
automotive and sports and entertainment

Qur teams are passionate like-minded and collaborative and
thrive In a culture based on imagmnation blended with purpose
Driven by & desire to disrupt we thrive on diversity of challenges
and pioneering innovation that impacts miltions of people across
the globe

Like Monitise MEA Monitise Create prowvides our clignts with
access to Strategists Experience Designers UX and Ul
Designers Software Developers and Architects Quality
Assurance Engineers and Delivery Managers tn order to create
and evolve digital products with impact

Monitise Content

Operating cigital distnbution networks, Moniuse Content
connects thousands of money saving offers from the world's
leading brands to milions of consumers through their digital
platforms

The portfolio mcludes one of the UKs lgading shopping
destinations myvouchercodes co uk providing money saving
offers across all shopping categornes including hohdays, fashion
and restaurants The portfolio also extends to operations serving
consumers N territories including the USA Germany Australia
and France

Uubsing proprietary technology Monitise Content also operates
a number of digital tickeling transactional platforms serving
business partners

Business Model

» Product hcence fees & Usage based fees

» Professional service fees for a team of experts who help
design bulld and project manage the delivery of wmning
propositions

Example Clients

TJurkish Isbank, ING Bank Emirates Nattonal Bank of Dubai
Turkish Airhnes TEB BNP Paribas Pegasus Airlines Arab
National Bank

“Monitise MEA has been our digital partner for almost a decade
always providing top notch digrtal solutions for our customers
with feading innovation for both mobile and internet banking
Together, we have been shaping the future of digital banking for
isBank customers *

Yalgin Sezen, Executive Vice President, Turkish Is Bank

Business Model

» Professional service fees for a team of experts who help
design bulld and project manage the delivery of winning
propositions

» Recurring revenue fees for product support maintenance and
both data and customer based insights

Example Clients
Fiat Chrysler Automotive Whitbread (Premier Inn) and Provident
Group (Satsuma Loans)

“Monitise Create is a strategic digital partner for FCA and
provides guidance and direction on the critical role mobile plays
across many of our brands™

Jacob Nyborg, Head of Brand Marketing Communications
EMEA, Fiat Chrysler Automotive

Business Model
+ Performance based

Example Clients
EE Nectar {Digital Ticketing Platform)
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Business model

continued

Monitise FINKIt? Business Unit - In more detall

Monitise FINKIt® 1s @ comprehensive cloud native business set-up spectfically for banks who want to accelerate the delivery of thetr digital
strategies by which we mean services to customers delivered via smartphone, tablet, PC, digital-TV smart-watch or any other digital medium

The Problem

Banks are under pressure to accelerate the delivery of thewr digital strategies and get innovation out of the labs and into consumers hands
To be successful there are a series of problems they need to overcome

= Rising consumer expectations Banks need to move fast to exceed rising consumers expectations of digital services Much faster moving
sectors are setting the bar high in terms of customer experience and the pace of iterating innovation

Regulatory pressure Regulators are creating a landscape that compels banks to open up comply with new standards and In doing so
embrace new technology and partnerships

» Constraints of legacy systems and processes Banks are hampered by legacy systems and processes and a culture that promotes a fear of fallure

* New competitionn Banks face new and more agile competitors some competing head on and some attacking ligh margin hines of business
Such competitors are free from the constraints of legacy systems and encouraged by changes in regulations

= Too much innovation theatre White banks have recognised the need to innovate so far innovation initiatives have largely heen confined to
labs and showcases with very little getting into the consurmers’ hands

+ Constramned budgets While iInnovation I1s seen as central to future performance dnving innovation at a time of fiscal constraint 1s problematic
and drives the need for cost effective solutions
The Solution

The Montise FINKIt* Business Unit has been created specifically to address these problems and enable banks to deliver better banking
getting more value for every pound they spend on Inncvation

The Momtise FINKit Business Unit has 4 key capabilibies

Platform
At the heart of the FINKt* Business Unit s capabilities 15 our unigue FINKit® platform and toolkit prowviding a modern application
development and ocperations environment built from the ground up for bank grade security compliance and performance

The platform includes

* A developer framework providing an accessible and useful environment for developers to access pre-built micro services and
quickly build and deploy complete products in a secure and compliant manner

Pre-built myero services a service catalogue of prebuilt service components provided by Monitise and our partners that form the
foundation of products and propositions defined by cur customers and made available through any digital channel

+ A cloud based infrastructure the underlying cloud infrastructure processing storage and secunty technology Based on multiple
Instances of IBM BlueMix to ensure bank grade performance scalatulity and security

+ A framework for security and compliance a blend of process tech and tooling that enable product managers and engineers to
conftdently (and continuously) create, test and deploy APIs securely and without hindrance design-time data classifications with
runtime protection controls

What other people say about the FINKit Platform

"The future for FS 1s the marriage of the best of FinTech firms and
the legacy financial service companies Momtise's platform FINKiE®
hosted on IBM Bluemix enabies both ends of the ecosystem to
work together collaboratively through APls FINKit* now boasts
dual sites in Europe provicing thewr Europe based banking
customers with a faster, highly resient service This is achieved

through dynamic balancing of requests across the two sites
providing enterprise level refiability it also add's capacity for further
innovation and raond delivery of new capabihties ”

Likhit Wagle
Global Industry General Manager Banking and Financial Markets at IBM

10

Monitise plc

Annual Report 2016




Strategic report

Partners
Our pioneering partnership programme 15 exclusively focused on enabling banks to collaborate with established technology providers
and the emergent high growth FinTech community

For banks, our Partnership Programme fast-forwards the due diigence required to work with partners prowides a single point of
integration to multiple partners and access to consumable and compliant APIs

For our Partmers, we help them through the due diigence process reach the nght decision makers and create an environment
promoting interaction and collaboration between banks and partners

What our Partners say about the FINKit Platform

“Geolse 15 proud to be working with Monitise brninging fughly
acclaimed time-based location services to financial institutions
Ours 1s an unusual journey into FinTech having founded our
success primarily 1n the real estate and transport markets Working
with Monitise enables our products to be used in new ways for new
purposes by a new market and that is a measure of innovative
partnership Working alone with banks would be difficult for us to
achieve but having an established technology partner of Monitise s
gravitas enables us to deliver our solutions to people we were
previously unable to reach FINKit® offers banks a single ntegration
to @ wide breadth of qualified services frorn carefully selected
partners all deirvered within a fully comphant environment "

Charlie Davies
Co-Founder iGeclise

"As a leachng proponent of financial services innovation Yodliege is
excited to be working with Monitise in bringing that innovation into
banks by means of collaborative working Monitise Is enabling its
banking chents to work with a broader range of service providers
through its industry platform FINKIt® which gives banks a single
pomnt of integration to an AP platform that contains a growing
ecosystemn of innovative partner services

Jason O'Shaugnessy
Senior Vice President Envestnet | Yodlee

We're very excited to be working with Momtise making our
CrossCore platform available to banks through FINKit® In a world
where technology 15 converging and moving at a very rapid pace
banks need to have an external platform for collaboration which is
what Monttise and Expenan provide Banks need to move forward
but can only do so within a regulated and comphiant environment
something that both of our companies always have and always will
deliver upon

Paul Gilmore
VP Partnerships and Alllances Expernan

Process

For Monitise agile 1s more than development methodology We run agile project end-to-end from ideas to live aperations We have
created a powerful process and engagement model underpinned by a developer toolk:t that autornates as much of the process as
possible Like the rest of the FINKit? proposition, the processes and methods we have created combine the best In agile practsces
toc execute In a secure and comphant manner

Our agile processes and culture enable us to respend at speed to the changing needs of the market We work In integrated
collaborative cross functional, self-organising teams in order to build test and release software faster and more frequently

People

With over a decade of experience we are experts In our space we provide guidance and knowledge from the outset Skilled at
digital product nnovation development and operations, we have a track record of developing winning digital strategies We are
specialists in agile methodologies from conception to completion Our teams are always tasked to leave behind skills proof points
and experience with our chents

Benefits to Banks i N '
+ Meetl nsing customer expectations « Avoid costs of changing legacy systems
« Safely test and fearn throughout + Stop spend on innovation theatre
« Continuously deliver and improve « Dont ever build from the ground up
\ J L J
w '
» Imprave time to market « Leverage our proven expertise
= Deliver better propositions « Leverage pre-bullt capabilibies
L- Engage customers more « Augment what you already have
J O\ w
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Risk management and principal risks

The Board has overall responsibility for managing risk Risks are formally identified and recorded in a risk
register, which i1s reviewed by the Board at each meeting

The Audit & Risk Committee, comprising independent Non-Executive
Directors, continuelly monitors and promotes the highest standards
of integnity financial reporting risk management and internal control

The Executive Birectors are closely involved m the day to day
management of the business and oversee a wide range of controls
including financial operational and compliance controls together
with risk management They ensure that key messages around risk
management are communicated throughout the business

The internal audit function provides an independent and objective
assurance activity designed to add value and improve the Group s
control systems and operations The mnternal audit function sets its
plan with approval from the Committee so as to align with the
business key nsk areas The Group undergoes external assessments
of its security arrangements

All significant sales opportunities are subject to technical and
contractual review by senior members of our legal financial,
commercial and technology teams There are strict internat controls
appled to the development of our products and services

In order to assist with the management of risks the Group continues
to recruit mdmviduals who are expert in our markets technelogy and
support disciphnes The Group has a delegation of authonties that
clearly sets out the approval required for key activities including
those restricted to the Board and the Executive Directors

An overview of how risk and internal controls are managed across the business is set out below

Board Oversight of risk and internal controls

Sets strategic objectives

Receives and reviews risk register

Receives and reviews key outputs from Audit & Risk Committee

Audit & Risk Reviews the Group s financial controls and other internal control systems

Committee Reviews risk management processes

Reviews the cutputs and effectiveness of the internal audit function

Reviews progress on implementing control improvements to manage risk

Assurance processes Embedded assurance processes to ensure risk 1s managed

Internal audit
External audit

Specialist external reviews
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The operations of the Group and implementation of the Group s strategy involve a number of nsks and uncertainties the principal ones of
which are described in the table below The key risks for the Group continue to evolve as we refine and execute upon our strategy Controls
to reduce nsk are designed to manage rather than eliminate rnsk and can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against material

misstaterment or loss

Risk

Potential Impact

Mitigating Control

Strategic

The nisk that FINKit* does not
generate sufficient revenue, either in
total or within the required
timescale

Continuing cash
investment reguirement
and strain on the Group
Inability to achieve
breakeven in FY 2017

Our focus remains on delivering sales following successful tnals and
through live opportunities that are being actively pursued directly We have
successfully developed the IBM alliance to support our engagements In an
effective manner and to reduce potential perceved risk for clients We have
established a partner network to provide accessible applications products
and components for platform users

The risk that newly disaggregated
businesses fan to meet their business
plans

Individual business units
fail to meet therr business
plans and cause the
Group to miss its financial
targets

Business units are closely monitored by the Group executive based upon
monthly monitoring against budgets reforecasts on a frequent basis and
a delegation of authority that reguires new hires significant expenditure
capital expenditure and non-standard contracts to be approved by Group
executives Restructuring reguired to improve performance or bring
businesses to profitability 1s mplemented by local management and closely
monitored by the Group executive

The nsk that third parties develop
products to compete through
improved capability, time to market
or commercial attractiveness The
nsk that customers choose to
develop solutions in house

Failure te roll out platform
and products in line with
our business plan leading
to a revenue and EBITDA
shortfall and ongoing
viabilty concerns

Regular reviews of competitor activity are undertaken to ensure that we are
aware of and react to competitive threats Market proposition communication
plans are n place with sales efforts focussed upon chients with known need for
product and working in tandem with 1IBM to communicate market selution
Contnued development and cormmunication of partner programme highlighting
the tangibility of solutions

Operational and financial

The nisk that costs of key supply
contracts and internal costs are too
high or not flexible with activity as
revenue contracts come to an end

Costs are unable to be
reduced tc a sustainable
level including in relation
to onerous contracts
leading to fallure to
achieve financial targets

Restructurning activity 1s continuing with the majority of onerous supply
contracts having been exited, Group headcount having been materially
reduced and all London operations having been merged on one site early
n FY 2017

Costs relating to supporting the Core MEP and MVP contracts are in the
process of being outsourced to provide a flexible cost base as contract
activity and revenues associated with these products decrease

The risk that key indmviduals are lost
who are fundamental to market
confidence or technical capability

Loss of market confidence
inability to drive through
technical capability
enhancements and loss of
ability to maximise market
opportunity

The Group offers competitive packages incentivises existing key talent
through long term incentives and continues to recruit new talent when
required We partner with external service providers who bring additional
expertise and support In both our existing and target markets

The risk that security controls do not
prevent the loss of customer data or
company Information from existing
or new products

Reputational damage and
loss of custormer and
investor confidence
Financiat penalties from
customers and regulators

Securnity assurance s an integral part of FINKit* development as new
functionalities and products are introduced into the platform For existing
capabilities, a detailed assurance programme has reviewed and tested &
large numbers of security controls A clear Security strategy has been
developed alongside the decentralisation of the business

The risk that market changes
adversely impact the volume of
transactions delivered across
Monitise platforms

Revenues will be adversely
impacted and FY 2017
profitabisty may not be
achieved

Internal expertise and external consultancy 15 utilised to monitor setevant
changes in the market environment Transaction volumes are monitored

The risk that we may not have
sufficlent funds to finance future
growth

Fallure to achieve our
growth plans or to continue
to trade without additional
funding

Customers unwilling to do
business due to a perceived
stressed state of the
business

Initral phases of restructuring are complete with business units restructured
to be self-sustaining profit centres with a much smaller central cost base
Further phases to ensure costs remain flexible with activity are underway

The Group operates a robust system of cost control and cash forecasting
covering both immediate and long-term needs Tight delegation of authority
te commit both revenue and capital spend I1s 1In place Group assets remain
subject to review to ensure they remain core to strategy and add to long-
term value
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Board of Directors

Peter Aylitfe (63)

Chairman and Non-Executive Director

Peter was President and Chief Executive Officer of Visa Europe from March
2006 to September 2013 where he was responsible for Visas European
business w37 countries accounting for some 30% of the worldwide
expenditure on Visa cards Prior to Visa Europe Peter spent over 30 years In
retall banking He was a main Board Director with responsibility for Retail
Banking at Lloyds TSB one of the UK s leading banks During this time Peter
was a Director on the Visa Europe Board and a Director on the Visa International
Board

Peter was appainted Chairman and Non-Executive Director of Monitise on
t October 2013 Peter 1s also currently Deputy Chairman of the Covenitry Buillding
Society Chairman of truRating the global consumer ratings company and a
trustee of Pennies the digital charity box

Charr of the Nominations & Governance Cormmittee

Amanda Burton (57)

Serer Independent

Non-Executive Director

Amanda Burton was Global Chiaf Operating Officer of Chifford Chance LLP from
201C-2014 having joined the firm in 2000

At present Amanda Burton is a Non-Executive Director of Countrys:de
Properties PLC and charirs its Remuneration Committee and of HSS Hire Group
PLC where she is Senior Independent Director and also chairs its Remuneration
Commttee Earlier this year she joned Skipton Bullding Society as a Non-
Executive Director

Amanda 1s also Charr of the Trustees of Battersea Dogs and Cats Home
Amanda was appointed Non-Executive Director to the Board on 4 June 2014

Chair of the Remuneration Committee Member of the Audit & Risk Committee
and the Norminations & Governance Committee

Tim Wade (56)

independent Non-Executive Director

Tim a gualfied lawyer and accountant s Charman of Macquarne Bank
International Limited and a Nen-Executive Directar of Chublb Europe Insurance
Group where he chairs the Audit Committees for both He 1s also a Non-
Executive Director of Access Bank UK Limited where he chairs the Credit
Committee Tim s also a former Chairman of the national ¢hanty Coelac UK
and independent Non-Executive Director of Friends Life

Tim was appo:nted Non-Executive Director to the Board on 12 January 2011

Charr of the Audit & Risk Committes Member of the Remuneration Commuttee
and the Nominations & Governance Committee

Lee Cameron (45)

Chief Executive Officer (CEQ)

Lee has been with the company since its formation as a member of the founding
management team Appointed to the Board in 2008 he has held a number of
senior executive roles within the company A lawyer by profession prior to
Morutise Lee was General Counsel of Morse plc a FTSE 250 and technology
company He has extensive experience of private and publc company boards

Lee was apponted CEO of the Group in September 2015

Gavin James (53)

Chief Operating Officer (COQ)

Gavin joined Monitise In October 2015 as CRO Gavin is a Chartered Accountant
by profession who has significant previous Board experience having held CFO
COO0 and CEO positions at both listed and private companies including Vertex
Group 150ft plc Morse plc Menvier Swain Group plc Gavin i1s currently Non-
Executive Chairman of the vertex Group

Gavin was appainted COQ of the Group In March 2016 and te the Board in July
2016
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Corporate governance report

Responsibilities across our governance framework

This corporate governance report 1s intended to provide shareholders with an overview of the Group's
governance arrangements and how they have operated during the year Monitise maintains 1ts
commutment to best practice in corporate governance, taking all elements appropriate to a company of

our size, structure and stage of growth

Board and Commuittees composition

At the date of this report the Board consists of a Non-Executive
Chairman, two Executive Drectors and two Independent
Non-Executive Directors Directors biographies including the
Committees on which they serve and chair are shown on page 14 It
15 the Group s poiicy to ensure that the number of Executive Directors
does not exceed the number of Independent Non-Executive
Directors The Board ensures that there 1s a Non-Executive Director
appointed as the Senior Independent Director This position 1s held
by Amanda Burton

The work of the Board s supported by three Committees, and a
separate report 1s presented In this report for each Committee

« Audit & Risk Committee
* Remuneration Committee
+ Nominations & Governance Committee

The composition of the Board 1s regutarly reviewed to ensure that it
15 of an appropriate size scale and balance and changes were made
during the year to reduce the size of the Board to one that 15 more
appropriate to its stage of development These changes are
summarised in the Chairman s statement on page 2

Matters reserved for the Board
The principal matters reserved for the Board include

= setting the Group strategy

« approving the annual operating plan and budget and maternal
changes to them

= approving material strategic contracts,
~ reviewing the Group structure hsting and capital requirernents

+ supervising the Group's operations, iInternal controls and financial
performance

+ approving major acquisitions disposals or changes in the Group s
sphere of operations

+ ensuring a satisfactory dialogue takes place with the shareholders

+ approving appointrments to the Board and maintaining sUCCessIion
plans for senior executives and

+ approving the annual and interim financial statements

Monitise plc
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Corporate governance report

continued

Board meetings and attendance

The full Board convenes at least six times a year with attendance
at these scheduled meetings set out below Further meetings
and conference calls are held as and when necessary with
several additional sessions having been held during the year

Meetings Attended

Meetings held during the year [
Peter Ayliffe (Chairman) 5]
Lee Cameron B
Amanda Burton 6
Tim Wade [S)
Etizabeth Buse' 1
Paulette Garafalo? 2
Brad Petzer® 2
Stephen Shurrock?* 1
Colin Tuckers 1

' E Buse attended the meeting held prior to her resignation as a Director
from the Beard on 9 September 2015

? P Garafalo attended all meetings held prior to her resrgnation as a
Drrector from the Board on 23 October 2015

3 B Petzer attended all meetings held prior to his resignation as a Director
from the Board on 30 Novermber 2015

* S Shurrack attended the meeting held prior to his resignation as a
Director from the Board on 15 October 2015

5 C Tucker attended 1 of 2 meetings held prior to his resignation as a
Director from the Board on 23 October 2015

& G James was apponted a Director on 1 Juty 2016 herce did not attend

any Board meetings In that capacity during the year ended 30 June
206

Rotation of Directors

Each Director is required to retire by rotation at the Annual General
Meeting held in the third calendar year following the year »n which
they were elected or last re-elected by the Company £ach Director
(other than the Charman and any Director holding an executive
office) 1s required to stand down at the Annual General Meeting
following the minth anniversary of the date on which they were
elected by the Company A Director who retires at any Annual
General Meeting shall be eligible for re-election unless the Directors
otherwise determine not later than the date of the notice of such
meeting

16

Monitise plc

Annual Report 2016




Governance

Report of the Audit & Risk Committee

“The Audit & Risk Committee has an integral role in providing confidence in the integnty of the
Company’s processes and procedures in relation to internal control, nsk management and financial

reporting”

introduction

The Audit & Risk Committee is appointed by the Board to assist
with the oversight and monitoring of financial reporting, risk
management and internal controls

This year has been one of continuing change for the Group with
significant restructuring activity undertaken The Committee
reviewed the requirements for an internal audit function for the
Group and has appointed an established outsourced provider to
provide the best spread of support and expertise

Following a re-assessment of the Group s strategic plan durning the
first half of the year impairments were recognised and reported in
the interim results

Role and responsibility of the Audit & Risk Committee
» overseeing the involvement of the Groups external auditors In
planning and review of the Group s financial statements

» recommending the appaintment and fees of the external auditors
to the Board

reviewing and monitoring the external auditor independence and
objectivity and the effectiveness of the external audit process

- reviewing the Group s financial controls and other internal control
systems

c reviewing risk management processes,

reviewing the outputs and effectiveness of the internal audit
function

reviewing progress on implementing control improvements and

reviewing Its terms of reference and its effectiveness from time to
time and recommending to the Beard any ¢hanges reguired

The Committees terms of reference are avallable for public
inspection at the Company's registered office

Activities during the year

Board meetings and attendance

Meetings Attended

Meetings held during the year 4
Tirn Wade 4
Amanda Burton 4
Paulette Garafalo' 1

Cohn Tucker? -

' P Garafalo attended one meeting held prior to her resignation as a
Director on 23 Cctober 2015

7 C Tucker did not attend the meeting held pnor to his resignation as a
Director on 23 October 2015

The biographies of the serving members
are provided on page 14

Durning the year the Committee undertook the following activities at Its meetings

Areaffunction Activity

Financial statements and .
accounting policies

reviewed the Group s draft financial statements, preliminary and interim results prior to Board approval
and reviewed the external auditors detailled reports thereon and

reviewed the appropriateness of the Group s accounting policies

Internal control and risk
management

reviewed the Group’s system of internal controls and its effectiveness, reporting to the Board on the
results of the review and receiving regular updates on key nsk areas of financial control and

monitored the process for formally identifying evaluating and managing any significant nisks and
opportunities within the business

External auditors .

reviewed the external auditors plan for the audit of the Group s financial statements
reviewed the effectiveness, ndependence and objectvity of the external auditor, and

reviewed/approved the external auditors engagement letter together with their audit and non-audit
fees

Internal audit function .

considered and approved the outsourcing of the Groups internal audit function, and

reviewed the internal audit function s work programme and internal audit reports
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Report of the Audit & Risk Committee

continued

Internal control and risk management

The Board has overall responsibility for managing risk The Audit &
Risk Committee 1s responsible for keeping under review the
effectiveness of the Company sk management and internal control
systems Details of the Group s principal risks and mitigating controls
are set out on pages 12 and 13

During the year the Committee met to consider the outsourcing of
the Group s internal audsit function On the basis that an outsourced
provider can provide a broader spread of knowledge and expertise
to review the differing components of the Group, including specialist
technology matters an established outsourced provider of internal
audit has been appointed

The Committee reviews the Group s Risk & Control Matrix at each
meeting receiving updates from both executive management and
internal audit on the key nsks facing the Group and various legal and
regulatory risk reports Executives responsible for key nsk areas
across the Group periodically present to the Audit & Risk Committee
and the Board including therr plans t¢ monitor and control the key
risks

The Board considers the Group s management and financial controls
enable timely and effective monitoring and control of the Group's
operations and consider them appropriate for a company with
securities admitted to AlM

The Group s accounting policies are considered by the Directors to
be appropnate In accordance with applicable accounting standards
and appropnate to the Group s business The Directors comply with
Rule 21 of the AIM Rules regarding dealings in the Company s shares
and, in hne with recent Market Abuse Regulation the Group has
adopted an appropniate share dealing code

External auditors

The Audit & Risk Committee I1s responsible for recommending to the
Board the appointment of the external auditors The Committee
considers the independence and objectivity of the auditors with
regard to the way in which they conduct therr audit duties The
Committee locks to ensure that the auditors independence s not
compromised by therr undertaking of non-audit work Non-audit/tax
advisory services will always be benchmarked by management to
ensure value for money auditor objectivity and independence of
advice

Tim Wade
Charr of the Audit & Risk Committee
7 September 2016
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Report of the Nominations & Governance Committee

“Maintaining the appropriate skills and knowledge base to achieve the Group’s strategic objectives and
ensure comphance with corporate governance principles, remains an absolute prionty for the

Committee”

Role and responsibility of the Nominations & Governance
Committee

The Nominations & Governance Committee 1s appointed by the
Roard and I1ts purpose 15 to assist the Board sn ensuring that it
maintains the appropriate balance of skilis knowledge and diversity
for management of the business and in order to support the Group s
strategic objectives Alongside this role the Committee is responsible
for the monitoring of governance matters The principal
responsibilities of the Committee are to

» consider the size structure and composition of the Board of the
Company

- review senior management succession plans retirements and
appontments of additional and replacement Directors

- evaluate the operating performance of the Board

« make appropriate recommendations so as o mamintan an
appropriate balance of skills experience and diversity on the
Board and

« develop and monitor compliance with corporate governance
principles appropriate for the size structure and stage of
development of the Group

The Committees terms of reference are available for public
inspection at the Company s registered office

Activities during the year
During the year the Committee met and made recommendations to
the Board for a number of appointments

- Lee Cameron who was appointed CEC on 9 September 2015
talang over from Ehzabeth Suse

« Tim Wade who was appointed as a Member of the Nominations &
Governance Committee with effect from 23 QOctober 2015,
following the move to a smaller Board

- Gavin James who was appointed COO with his appointment to
the Board as an Executive Director taking effect after the year end
on 1 July 2016

= The Committee led the annual appraisal of the Board its
Committees and the Chairman

» The Committee reviewed the overall Corporate Governance
structure of the Group taking into account both the changing
shape of the Group and new regulatory requirements

Diversity policy

Diversity within our Board 1s essential in maximising its effectiveness
as it enriches debates business planning and problem solving We
approach diversity In its widest sense so as to recrust the best talent
avallable based on merit and assessed against objective crnitena of
skills knowledge independence and experience The Commuttees
primary objective 15 to ensure that Monitise maintains the strongest
possible leadership

Committee membership and attendance

Meetings Attended

Meetings held during the year 3
Peter Ayliffe (Chairman) 5
Colin Tucker! 1
Amanda Burton 5
Tim Wade? 3

' Cohln Tucker attended one of the two meetings held prior to his
resignation from the Commuttee on 23 October 2015

2 Tim Wade attended all meetings following his appointment to the
Committee on 23 October 2015

©

Board and Committee evaluation

Critical to the sugcess of the Board and its Committees in achieving
their aims s the effectiveness with which they operate The Board
carries out an evaluation of its performance regularly Each Director
completes a questionnaire covening Board and Committee
procedures and effectiveness facilitated by the Company Secretary
Results are reviewed by the Chairman reported back to the Board
and approprate actions taken The Charman reviews the
contribution of each Director individually and the senior independent
Non-Executive Director reviews the Chairman

The biographies of the serving members
are provided on page 14

Re-election to the Board

Fallowing the evaluation of the Boarg 1 can confirm as Chairman that
the performance of all our Non-Executive Directors continues to be
effective and that they demonstrate appropriate commitment and
time to therr roles Our new Executive Director Gavin James 15 due
to stand for election at the AGM No other directors are due for re-
election

Peter Ayliffe
Chairman of the Nomination Committee
7 September 2016
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Directors’ Remuneration Report

“"The Remuneration Commuttee keeps the remuneration policy for the Group regularly under review and
takes action whenever necessary to ensure that remuneration is aligned with the overall strategic

objectives of the Group”

Introduction

This has been a year of continuing transition for the Group and the
Commttee has reviewed the Group s remuneration and long term
incentive arrangements 1o mamtain alignment with the Group s
strategy and to ensure incentaves drive the nght behaviour to deliver
long term shareholder value As part of this rewview, in order to
maximise the effectiveness of current incentives and to operate
within the avallable headroom constraints, the Committee cancelled
certain previous awards In respect of the Performance Share Plan
Bonuses were not awarded last year as the Group did not meet its
performance targets For the year ended 30 June 2016 1in view of the
major restructuring and continued developrment of the new business
modelit was not considered appropriate to pay an annual cash bonus
to the Cirectors

The following informatien on Directors' remuneration 15 disclosed
mindful of Rule 19 of the AIM Rules and the fact that as the Company
15 quoted on the Alternative Investment Market (AIM) 1t 1s not
required tg comply with the Main Market UK Listing Rules or those
aspects of the Companies Act applicable to listed companes
regarding the disclosure of Directors remuneration We remain
committed to providing adequate and appropriate transparency in
this respect

Role and responsibility of the Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Comrmittee has specific responsibiity for advising
the Groups Board on the remuneration peolicy applicable for
Executive Directors and other senior executives, and sets specific
remuneration, benefits and performance related pay levels for these
individuals The Committee 15 also responsible for reviewing the
overall policy In respect of remuneration of afl other employees of
the Group and establishing the Groups polcy and operation of
employee share option schemes

The Committees terms of reference are avallable for public
Inspection at the Company's registered office

Activities during the year
Key activities yndertaken during the year included

+ A review of proposals for, and grant of, share options under the
Montise Performance Share Plan ('PSP") The Monitise PSP s
intended to remain the main Scheme for providing Group-wide
share incentives

« A review of existing awards (n place, resulting in the cancellation
of certain previous awards in order to maximise the effectiveness
of current incentives and operate within the avallable headroom
constraints

« Determintng the leaving arrangements for certain leavers including
where applicable their settlement agreements

* Approving and supervising options granted to employees under
the Company s Sharesave Scheme

Committee membership and attendance

Meetings Attended

Meetings held during the year 5
Amanda Burton (Chair) 5
Colin Tucker' 2
Tim Wade 5

! Coltn Tucker attended both meetings held prior to hus resignation from
the Commitiee on 23 October 2015

The biographies of the serving members
are provided on page 14

Advisors to the Remuneration Committee

The Remuneratton Committee 1s authorised, If it wishes to seek
independent specialist services to provide infoermation and advice on
remuneration During the year the Remuneration Committee wtiised
the services of New Bridge Street { NBS ) a leading firm of executive
remuneration consuliants which is a signatory to the Remuneration
Consuitants Group’s Code of Conduct NBS 15 part of Acn plc
Although Aon provides other services to the Group from time to
time, the Committee periodically reviews this relationshup and
remains satisfied that appropriate safeguards exist to ensure the
independence of NBS s advice

The Chairman Chief Executive Officer Chief Qperating Officer and
Company Secretary also provided adwvice and support to the
Committee, with none being present for discussions related to therr
own remuneration

Remuneration Pohicy

The Executive remuneration pelicy i1s to ensure that the remuneration
of Executive Directors ang sentor executives properly reflects therr
role and responsibilities and in the context of the scale and
international scope of the Group's operations We seek to ensure that
remuneration packages are sufficient to recruit, retain and motivate
tugh-gquality executive talent, whilst aligning the interests of senior
executives as closely as possible with the interests of shareholders
The remuneration of the Executive Directors has been structured to
provide a significant performance-related efement hnked to the
achievernent of stretching financial performance targets A share
ownership guideline has also been mtroduced for Executive Directors
requiring a holding of 100% of salary to be built and maintaned whilst
in office (see page 23 for shareholdings at the end of the financial
year}

The Committee intends to keep the remuneration policy regularly
under review and will take action whenever deemed necessary to
ensure that remuneration 1s aligned with the overall strategic
objectives of the Group
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Executive Directors’ remuneration
In the year under review Executive Dwrectors total remuneration packages compnsed

« fixed pay including base salary, pension contribution health insurance, hife assurance perrmanent health insurance and

+ variable pay compnsing bonus opportunity and participation in the Group s share-based long-term incentive plans

Non-Executive Directors

The Non-Executive Directors have a written letter of appointment with Monitise The Non-Executive Directors are appointed for an initial term

of one year and may be re-appointed annually thereafter The appontment letters for the Non-Executive Directors are made available for pubhc
inspection at the Company's registered office

The remuneration of the Executive and Non-Executive Directors serving during the year was as follows

Salary and fees Bonus Pension Benefits in Kind/Other Total

2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015
Directors emoluments £'000Q £000 £000 £ 000 £'000 £ 000 E'000 £ 000 £000 € 000
Executive Directors
L Cameron 325 325 - - 18 17 1 1 344 343
E Buse' 77 400 - - - 2 15 B84 92 486
B Petzer? 100 233 - - -] 14 - 1 105 248
Independent Non-Executive Directors
A Burton 50 50 - - - - - - 50 50
T Wade 50 50 - - - - - - 50 50
P Garafalo? 16 50 - - - - - - 16 50
C Tucker* 16 50 - - - - - - 16 50
Non-Executive Directors
P Ayliffe 120 165 - - - - - - 120 165
S Shurrocks - - - - - - - - - -
Total remuneration 754 1,323 - - 23 33 16 86 793 1,442

! E Buse resrgned as an Executive Director on 9 Septemper 2015 The value of contractual tax equalisation benefits o yet to be confirmed
? B Petzer resigned as an Executive Director on 30 November 2015

* P Garafalo resigned as a Non- Executive Director on 23 Qctober 2015

“ C Tucker resigned as a Non-Executive Director on 23 October 2015

% § Shurrock resigned as a Non-Executive Director on 15 October 2015

During the year one share option exercise took place by L Cameron as shown in the table on page 22 generating a pre-tax gan of £5,550

Share incentives

The Committee believes that long-term share awards should form a key part of the remuneration policy and provide a direct means of aligning
rewards for both Executive Directors and the broader base of staff across the Group with both the leng-term performance of the Group and
the interests of the shareholders

Under the share incentive schemes the Remuneration Committee may grant to Directors and employees awards over shares in the Company
Legacy plans

Monitise has the following three legacy plans and the Committee does not intend to grant further awards to employees under any of these
plans

+ Enterprise Management incentive Plan
= Monitise Rollover Plan and
+ Clarrmail 2004 Share Option Plan
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Directors’ Remuneration Report

continued

Current plans
Awards were Issued during the year under the Performance Share Plan and the Sharesave Scheme A full ist of current plans is set out below

+ Performance Share Plan,

* Approved Share Option Plan

* Unapproved Share Option Plan

* Deferred Annual Bonus Plan

* Sharesave Scheme and

+ Employee Stock Purchase Plan (US Scheme)

See note 25 of the financial statements for the further detalls related to share-based payments plans
The following Directors held options to subscernibe for Ordinary shares in the Company at the year end

Market Value Options Granted/ Options
at date Held at {Exercised) Cancelled Held at Exercise Earltest
Director Date of Grant of grant 1 July 2015 in the year inthe year 30 June 2016 Price Exercise Date  Expry Date
Performance Share Plan
L. Camergn Oct 2008 6 10p 300.000 (300 000> - - 100p Oct 2009 to Oct 2013 Jun 2018
Sep 2012 3750p 1.000.000 - - 1,000,000 32 75p Sep 2015 Sep 2022
Dec 2012 3375p 4,000,000 - (4,000,000) - 100p Dec 2016 to Dec 2018 Dec 2022
Sep 2013 5150p 1,000,000 - (1,000,000) - 1 00p Dec 2017 Sep 2023
Sep 2014 44 00p  1.500.000 - (1,500,000) - 1 00p Dec 2018 Sep 2024
Oct 2015 2 85p - 9,750,000 - 9,750,000 100p Dec 2018 Oct 2025

' The perfarmance condition for the unvested option award held at the end of the year is based on revenue and EBITDA tergets for FY 2018 and the award in¢ludas
full vesting on takeover

Refer to note 25 to the financial statements for further information on the share scheme grants issued in the current and comparative years
and refer to prior years annual reports for details for all option awards (in prior periods

The market price of the Company s Ordinary shares at 30 June 2016 was 2 72p (as at 30 June 2015 1075p) and the range of market prices
during the year was 166p 10 10 5p (2015 9729p to 53 0p)

Amanda Burton
Chair of the Remuneration Committee
7 September 2016
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Directors’ Report

The Directors present their report and the audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for
the year ended 30 June 2016 This Directors’ Report contains certain statutory, regulatory and other
information and incorporates, by reference, the Strategic Report and Governance Reviews included

earlier In this document

Strategic Report

This Annual Report and Accounts has been prepared to provide shareholders with a far and balanced review of Monitise's business and the
outlook for the future development of the Group as well as the principal nsks and uncertainties which could affect the Group's performance

The table below identifies where to find specific information related to the business review

Content Section Page
A detailed review of the Group’s business and future developments  Strategic report 1-1
Principal nisks Risk management and prncipal rsks 2-13
Corporate governance Governance sections 14 - 24

Results and dividends

Detalls of the results are set out in the Consolidated Statement of
Comprehensive Income on page 26 The bDirectors do not
recommend the payment of a dividend (2015 £nil)

Directors and their interests
The composttion of the Board at the date of this Report together
with director s biographical detatls 15 shown on page 14

The Directors who he!d office at the end of the financial year had the
following nterests in the £0 01 Ordinary shares of the Company
according to the register of Directors Interests

30 June 30 June

2018 2015

Number Number

of shares of shares

L Cameron 1,588,880 288,880
P Ayliffe 520,270 520 270
A Burton 261,884 261,884
T Wade 350,000 350,000

Directors beneficial interests in the share options of the Company
are given In the Directors Remuneration Report on page 22

Directors’ indemnity and hability insurance

The Company has purchased and maintained throughout the year
lrability insurance tn respect of its Directors The Directors also have
the benefit of the indemnity provision contaned n the Company s
Articles of Association which represents a quahfying third-party
indemnity provision as defined by Sectron 234 of the Compames Act
2006

Political and Charitable Donations
No Political donations were made were made durnng the year (2015
nil)

Research and development

The Group undertakes research and development activities refating
to the products and services It provides Disclosures regarding the
expenditure and capitalisation of development costs in the year have
been made In notes 6 and 12 to the financial statements respectively

Key Performance Indicators

Key Performance Indicators are used to measure and control both
financiat and operational performance Revenues, margins costs and
cash are trended at both business unit and Group level to ensure
plans are on track and corrective actions are taken where necessary
Service performance is also monitored and tracked asis progress in
product development and deployment through measurement
against agreed milestones

Financial instruments

The Group s financial iInstruments primanly comprise cash balances
loans trade recervables and payables ansing from its operations The
Group s policy and year-end position regarding financial instruments
has been fully disclosed in note 2 9 to the financial statements

Annual General Meeating

The Annual General Meeting will be held at the offices of Canaccord
Genuity Limited 88 Wood Street London EC2V 7QR on 18 October
2016 at 1000 am

Going concern

The Directors confirm that they have a reasonable expectation that
the Group will have adequate resources to continue In operational
existence for the foreseeable future and accordingly they continue
to adopt the going concern basis In preparing the financial
statements See note 211 to the financial statements

Employees

Sourcing and retaining the highest calibre employees from a wide
range of backgrounds 1s key to our strategy The service we provide
to all our customers is only as good as the people who represent our
bustness our business and brand The Group provides competitive
reward and benefit packages supported by appropriate training and
personal development programmes and ways to encourage and
reward ouistanding performance

Senior executives regularly hold interactive sessions with staff to
discuss relevant developments in different parts of the business and
future activity The Group also has programmes in place to help staff
stay fit and well Those inibiatives including gym discounts childcare
vouchers and Ride2work schemes halp to improve health boost
morale and lower staff absence, making them good for business as
well as for our teams
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Directors’ Report

continued

The Group 1s committed to employment policies based on best
practice including equal opportunities for all employees irrespective
of sex, race, colour disabiity or marntal status We give fulf and fair
consideration to applications for employment from disabled people
having regard to their particular aptitudes and abihties Appropnate
arrangements are made for ther continued employment and training
career development and promotion If a member of staff becomes
disabled we will continue employment either in the same or an
alternative position with appropriate retraimng being given if
necessary

Staff can also participate directly in the success of the Group through
a varety of employee share option schemes

Health & Safety

The Group 15 committed to maintaining a safe and healthy working
environment and ensuring the health safety and welfare of all
employees customers and the general public There were no
significant accidents in the workplace during the year Benefits for
the health and welibeing of staff vary by office, but include private
medical insurance and employee assistance programmes

Code of Conduct

The Group has adopted standards to promote corporate values
designed to help employees in ther conduct and business
relationships Policies in place include a code of ethics business
conduct equal opportunities and diversity, and health and safety It
15 the Group s policy to conduct business in an honest, open and
ethical manner A zero tolerance approach s taken to bribery and
corruption harassment bullying and discrimination

The Environment and Slavery Act

The direct environmental impact of Group operationsis relatively low
with the marn impacts arising from business-related travel and power
consumption in our various locations around the world Nonetheless
Monitise (s commutied to reducing carbon emissions wherever
possible

The Group does not tolerate any slavery or human trafficking within
Its business operations All our business units operate under the
Group s values and achere to the laws of the countries in which we
operate All of the Group s employees based (n the UK and abroad
are required to have the necessary documentation to legally work in
their designated country and meet the legal minimum age for
employment The Groups suppliers are obliged by Monitises
contractual arrangements 1o comply with all applicable laws, which
includes the Modern Slavery Act 2015

Statement of Directors’ responsibilities

The Dwectors are responsible for prepaning the Annugl Report and
the financial statements in accordance with applicable law and
regulations Company law requires the Directors to prepare financial
statements for each financial year Under that law the Directors have
prepared the Group and parent company financial statements in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards ¢ IFRS )
as adopted by the European Union Under company law the Directors
must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied
that they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group
and the Company and of the profit or loss of the Group for that
period In preparing these financial statements the Cirectors are
required to

« select switable accounting polcies and then apply them
consistently

+ make Judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable
and prudent,

» state whether applicable IFRSs as adopted by the European Union
have been followed, subject to any matenal departures disclosed
and explained in the financial statements and

+ prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless
1t 18 Inappropriate to presume that the Company and the Group
will continue In business

The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting
records that are sufficient to show and explain the Companys
transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the
financial position of the Company and the Group and enable them
to ensure that the finangial statements comply with the Companies
Act 2006 They are also respensible for safeguarding the assets of
the Company and the Group and hence for taking reasonable steps
for the prevenuon and detection of fraud and other rregularities

The Directors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of
the corporate and financial information included on the Company s
website Legislation in the United Kingdom goverring the preparation
and dissemination of financial statements may differ from legislation
In other jurisdictions

Independent auditors

The auditors PrnicewaterhouseCoopers LLP have indicated their
willingness to continue 1n office, and a resolution that they te re-
appointed will be proposed at the Annual General Meeting

Statement regarding the disclosure of information to auditors

In accordance with Section 418(2) of the Companmies Act 2006 each
Director who held office at the date of approval of this Directors’
Report confirms that

+ so far as they are aware, there i1s no relevant audit infermation of
which the Company's auditors are unaware and

+ the Director has taken all the steps that he ought to have taken as
a Director in order 1o make himself aware of any refevant audit
information and to establish that the Company s auditors are aware
of that information

Approved by the Board and signed on behalf of the Board

Tom Spurgeon / ,
Company Secretary
7 September 2016 /
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Independent auditors’ report

to the members of Monitise plc

Report on the financial statements
Qur opinion
In our opINon

+ Momtise plc s Group financal statements
and Company financial statements (the
financial statements™) give a true and fair
view of the state of the Group s and of the
Company s affairs as at 30 June 2016 and
of the Group s loss and the Group s and
the Companys cash flows for the year
then ended

+ the Group hnancial statements have been
properly prepared in accordance with
Internatiocnat Financial Reporting
Standards ("IFRSs ) as adopted by the
European Unwon

« the Company financial statements have
been properly prepared n accordance
with IFRSs as adopted by the European
Urion and as apphed in accordance with
the provisions of the Companies Act
2006 and

+ the finangial statements have been
prepared in  accordance with the
requirements of the Companies Act 2006

What we have audited
The financial statements included within the
Annual Report comprnse

+ the Consclidated and Company statements
of financial position as at 30 June 2016

= the Consohidated staternent of
comprehensive income for the year then
ended

+ the Cash flow statements for the vear then
ended

+ the Consolidated and Company
statements of changes in equity for the
year then ended, and

» the notes to the financial statements
which include a summary of signmificant
accounting policies and other explanatory
nformation

Certain required disclosures have been
presented elsewhere in the Annual Report,
rather than @ the notes to the financial
statements These are cross-referenced from
the finantial statements and are wdentified as
audited

The financial reporting framework that has
been applted in the preparation of the
financial staternents 1s IFRSs as adopted by
the European Umion and as regards the
Company financial statements, as appled in
accordance with the prowisions of the
Compantes Act 2006 and apphcable law

In  applying the financial reporting
framework the Directors have made a
number of subjective judgements for
example in respect of significant accounting

estimates In making such estimates they
have made assumptions and considered
future events

Opimion on other matter prescribed by

the Companises Act 2006

In our opinion the information given in the
Strategic Report and the Directors Report
for the financial yvear for which the financial
statements are prepared 1s consistent wiath
the financial statements

Other matters on which we are required

to report by exception

Adequacy of accounting records and
information and explanations received
Under the Companies Act 2006 we are
required to report to you if in our opimon

* we have not received all the information
and explanations we require for our audit
or

= adequate accounting records have not been
kept by the Company or returns adequate
for our audit have not been received from
branches not visited by us or

= the Company financial statements are not
n agreement with the accounting records
and returns

We have no exceptions to report arnsing
from this responsibility

Directors’ remuneration

Under the Cormpanies Act 2006 we are
required to report to you if in pur opinion
certain disclosures of directors
remuneration specified by law are not made
We have no exceptions to report arising
from this responsibility

Responsibilities for the financial
statements and the audit

Our responsibiitses and those of the
Directors

As explained more fully in the Statermnent of
Directors responsibilities set out on page 24
the Directors are responsible for the
preparation of the financial staternents and
for being satisfied that they give a true and
far view

Cur responsibility 15 to audit and express an
opmion on the financial statements n
accordance with applhcable law and
International Standards on Audting (UK and
Ireland) ( ISAs (UK & Ireland) ) Those
standards require us to comply with the
Auditing Pracuces Board s Ethical Standards
for Auditors

This report Including the opinions, has been
prepared for and only for the Companys
members as a body n accordance with
Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act
2006 and for no other purpose We do not

tn giving these opmnions accept or assume
responsibility for any other purpose or to any
other person to whom this report s shown or
nto whose hands it may come save where
expressly agreed by cur prior consent in
writing

What an audit of iinancial statements
involves

We conducted our audit in accordance with
1ISAs (UK & Iretand) An audit involves
obtaining evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial  statements
sufficient to give reasonable assurance that
the financial statemenits are free from matenial
misstatement whether caused by fraud or
error This includes an assessment of

« whether the accounting policies are
appropriate to the Groups and the
Company s circumstances and have been
consistently appled and adequately
disclosed

+ the reasonableness of  significant
accounting  estimates made by the
directors and

the overali presentation of the financial
statements

We primanly focus our work in these areas
by assessing the dwectors judgementis
agamst avallable evidence formung our own
judgements and evaluating the disclosures
in the financial statements

We test and examine information, using
samphing and other auditing techmques to
the extent we consider necessary to provide
a reasonable basis for us to draw
conclusions  We obtain audit evidence
through testing the effectiveness of controls
substantive procedures or a combination of
both

In additton, we read all the financial and non-
financial information in the Annual Report to
identify matenal inconsistencies with the
audited financial statements and to identify
any information that 1s apparently materially
incorrect based on or matenally inconsistent
with the knowledge acquired by us in the
course of performing the audit If we
become aware of any apparent matenal
misstatements or inconsistencies  we
consider the imphcations for our report

Nigel Reynolds (Senior Statutery Auditor)
for and on behalf of
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

Chartered Accountants and Statutory
Auditors

Londoen

7 September 2016
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Consolidated statement of comprehensive income

for the year ended 30 June 2016

2016 2015

Note £'000 £000
Revenue 5 67,565 89 700
Cost of sales (28,706) (44,280)
Gross profit 38,859 45 420
Operating costs before depreciation, amortisation impairments and share-based payments' (58,482) (87 220}
EBITDA? (19,623) (41 800>
Depreciation, amortisation and impairments’ 6 (205.216) (119,196)
Operating loss before share-based payments and exceptional tems {(224,839) (160996)
Share-based payments' 25 (16,468) (27977
Other exceptional items? 6 (3,452) (341513
Operating l0ss 6 (244,799) (223124)
Finance income 8 1,975 712
Finance costs 8 (200} (1233
Share of post-tax loss of joint ventures 14 (58) (3788
Loss before income tax {243,082y (227433
Income tax 9 9,711 3882
Loss for the year attributable to the owners of the parent (233,371) (223551)
Other comprehensive income that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
Currency translation differences on consolidation 8,889 8150
Total comprehensive expense for the year attributable to the owners of the parent (224,482) (215401)
Loss per share attributable to owners of the parent during the year (expressed in pence per share)
- basic and diuted 10 (10 5) Qos

' Total operating costs after depreciation amortisation impasrments share-based payments and exceptional expenses are £283 658 000 (2015 £268 544 000)
2 EBITDA 1s defined as operating loss before excephional tems depreciation amorbsation mmpairments and share-based payments charge

The comparative iigures include a reclassification of marketing costs from operating expenses to cost of sales (see note 21) and net foreign
exchange gains on iinancing activities have been reclassifred from finance costs to finance income (see note 21)

The Company has elected to take the exemption under Section 408 of the Companies Act 2006 to not present the parent company Staternent

of Comprehensive Income {see note 29)
The notes on pages 32 to 60 are an integrai part of these consokdated financial statements
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Financial Statements

Consolidated statement of financial position

as at 30 June 2016

2016 2015
Note £'000 £000
ASSETS
Non-currant assets
Property plant and equiprment 11 3,338 7.276
Intangible assets 12 36,155 216,273
Investments in joint ventures 14 - 500
Other receivables 15 370 -
5 39,863 224,048
Current assets
Trade and other receivables 15 15,970 27,824
Current tax assets 12 -
Cash and cash eguivalents 16 42,089 88 801
58,071 116 625
Total assets 97,934 340,674
LIABILITIES
Current habilities
Trade and other payables 19 (21,627) (34,434)
Current tax habilities - 24)
Provisions 20 (10,864) (14,658)
Financial habilities pal (1,002) (10,036)
(33,493) (59,212)
Non-current liabilities
Other payables 19 (950) (3,936)
Prowisions 20 (8,016) (15,200)
Financial habilities 21 (807) (335)
Deferred tax habihties 22 (1,021) (10,208)
Total liabilities (44,287) (88,891)
Net assets 53,647 251,783
EQUITY
Capital and reserves attributable to owners of the parent
Ordinary shares 24 22,519 21,682
Qrdinary shares to be 1ssued 24 2,511 2,511
Share premum 24 383,721 383,721
Foreign exchange translation reserve 24 6,377 (2,512)
Other reserves 24 269,449 244,214
Accumulated losses (630,930) (397 833)
Total egffty | 53,647 251,783

Company number 0601822

The notes on pages 32 to 60 are an integral part of these consohdated financial statements

pproved and authonsed for 1ssue by the Board of Directors on 7 September 2016 and
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Company statement of financial position
as at 30 June 2016

2016 2015
tNote £000 £000
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Investments in subsidiaries 13 33,459 187,183
33,459 187,183
Current assets
Trade and other recervables 15 283 3,586
Cash and cash equivalents 16 15,832 42,320
16,115 45,806
Total assets 49,574 233,089
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 19 {5,209) (5,498)
Provisions 20 (565) -
Financial habilities 21 - {9,775)
(5,774) (15,273)
Non-current liabilities
Provisions 20 (153) -
Total llabihties (5,927) (15,273)
Net assets 43,647 217.816
EQUITY
Capital and reserves attributable to owners of the parent
Crdinary shares 24 22,519 21,682
Ordinary shares to be 1ssued 24 2,511 2,511
Share prermimum 24 383,721 383,721
Other reserves 24 285,922 259,451
Accumulated losses (651,026) (449,549)
Total ec»ljly\ 43,647 217,816

Company number 0601822
The notes on pages 32 to 60 are an Integral part of these consolidated financial statements

ere approved and authorised for 1ssue by the Board of Directors on 7 September 2016 and
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Consolidated statement of changes in equity

for the year ended 30 June 2016

Ordinary Raverse Share based Foregn
Ordinary sharas to be Share Mergar acouisition paymant  Accumulated exchanga Total
shares ssued pramum reserve reserve reserva losses reserve eauty
Note Foco £000 £000 E£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Balance at 1 July 2014 19,448 2,511 336,990 221,539 (25,321) 20,823 (182,019) (10.662) 383,309
Loss for the year - - - - - - (223,551) - (223,551)
Other comprehensive Income - - - - - - - 8150 8,150
Total comprehensive
(expense)/income - - - - - -  {(223,551) 8,150 (215 401)
Issue of Ordinary shares
{net of expenses) 24 1,614 - 46,014 - - - - - 47,628
Issue of Ordinary shares
relating to pnor year
business combinattons 24 458 - - 7.133 - (151 - - 7,440
Share-based payments 25 - - - - - 27928 - - 27,928
Exercise of share options 24 182 - 717 - - 7.737N 7737 - 879
Balance at 30 June 2015 21,682 2,511 383,721 228,672 (25 321) 40,863 (397,833) (2512) 251,783
Balance at 1 July 2015 21 682 2,511 383,721 228,672  (25,321) 40,863 (397,833) (2,512) 251783
Loss for the year - - - - - - (233,371) - (233,371
Other comprehensive income - - - - - - - B 889 8,889
Total comprehensive
(expense)/income - - - - - - (233,371 8,889 (224,482)
Issue of Ordinary shares
refating to pnior year
business combinations 24 791 - - 9,511 - (470) - - 9,832
Share-based payments 25 - - - - - 16,468 - - 16,468
Exercise of share options 24 46 - - - - {274) 274 - 486
Balance at 30 June 2016 22,519 2,511 383,721 238,183 (25321) 56,587 (630,930) 6,377 53,647
The notes on pages 32 to 60 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements
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Company statement of changes in equity

for the year ended 30 June 2016

Ordinary Share basec
Ordinary shares 1& be Shara Murger payment Accumulated Total
sharaes ssyed premasm rgserve reserve losses eguity
Note E000 €000 £000 €000 £000 Foo0 £000
Balance at 1 July 2014 19,448 2,511 336,990 221,539 13,066 (19.802) 573,752
Loss for the year and total comprehensive expense 29 - - - - - (438,432) (438,432)
Issue of Ordinary shares {net of expenses) 24 1,614 - 46 014 - - - 47,628
Issue of Ordinary shares relating to prior year
busingss combinations 24 458 - - 7,133 (151> - 7.440
Share-based payments 25 - - - - 23996 2,553 26,549
Exercise of share options 24 162 - 717 - (6132) 6132 879
Balance at 30 June 2015 21682 2511 383,721 228672 30,779 (449,549) 217,816
Balance at ¥ July 2015 21,682 2,511 383,721 228,672 30779 (449549) 217,816
Loss for the year and total comprehensive expense 29 - - - - - {201,627) (201,627)
Issue of Ordinary shares relating to prior year
business combinations 24 791 - - 9,511 470) - 9832
Share-based payments 25 - - - - 17,704 (124) 17,580
Exercise of share options 24 46 - - - {274) 274 46
Balance at 30 June 2016 22,519 2,511 383,721 238,183 47,739 (651,026) 43,647

The notes on pages 32 to 60 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements
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Cash flow statements
for the year ended 30 June 2016

Group Company
2018 2015 2016 2015

Note £000 E000 £000 £ 00D
Cash flows used In operating activities
Cash used by operations before exceptional expenses 27 (21,869) (50,345) (26,262) €99,080)
Exceptional expenses (15,959) {9,491) (597) (2,469)
Net income tax paid (80) (141) - -
Net cash used in operating activities (37,908} (59,977 (26,859) (101,549)
Investing activities
Investments in joint ventures 14 (500) (1,244) - -
Interest received 338 447 286 391
Proceeds on disposal of property, plant and equipment 35 - - -
Purchases of property plant and equipment (894) (4,135) - -
Purchase and capstalisation of intangible assets (8,238) {40,821} - -
Net cash (used in)/generated from investing activities {9,259) (45,753) 286 391
Financing activities
Proceeds from issuance of ordinary shares (net of expenses) - 46,995 - 46,995
Share options ang warrants exercised 85 879 85 879
Interest paid (122) (164) - -
Repayments of finance lease liabilities (1,155} 277) - -
Net cash (used in)/from financing activities (1,192) 47,433 as 47,874
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (48,359) (58,297) (26,488) (53.284)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 88,801 146,828 42,320 95,604
Effect of exchange rate changes 1,647 270 - -
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 16 42,089 88 801 15,832 42,320

The notes on pages 32 to 60 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements

Monitise plc

Annual Report 2018

3




Financial Statements

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 30 June 2016

1 General informatton

Monitise plc ( the Company ) and its subsidianes (together the Group ) 15 a specialist in financial services technology primanly focused on
accelerating the digital transformation of banks and financial institutions The Group 1s headguartered in the UK and, during the year ended
30 June 2016, operated ventures In the UK US and Turkey

The Company 1s a pubhc Itmited company incorporated and domiciled in England and Wales whose shares are publicly traded on the
Alternative Investment Market (CAIM ) of the London Stock Exchange

2 Summary of significant accounting policies
The principal accounting policies appled in the preparation of these consolidated financial staternents are set out below The policies are the
sarme as those used in prepanng the consolidated financial statements at 30 June 2015 unlass otherwise stated

21 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of Monitise plc have been prepared on a going concern basis in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards ( IFRS ) as adopted by the European Union ( IFRS as adopted by the EU) IFRS Interpretations Committee and the
Companies Act 2006 applicable to companies reporting under IFRS The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the
histoncal cost convention as modified where apphcable, by the revaluation of financial assets and financial izbilities (ncluding dernvatives)
at fair value through profit or loss The Group changed the classification of certain marketing costs from operating expenses to cost of sales
to more appropnately reflect the relationship of these costs to the related revenue actraity The pnior year comparatives have been restated
by £1053 000 to reflect the revised classification Net foreign exchange gains on financing activities of £270Q 000 for the prior year have been
reclassified from finance costs to finance income to reflect the appropriate classification of these costs

211 Gomng concern

At 30 June 2016 the Group had cash of £42 082 000 The Directors have prepared a cash flow forecast cluding reasonable sensitivities
which shows sufficient funding to see the Group through the forecast penod The forecast includes the benefits from the cost savings which
are being made frem the business optimisation programme headcount rattonalisation, exiting from non-core gecgraphies and property
rationalisation Furthermore capital expenditure 1s expected to continue at the substantially reduced level experienced during the year ending
30 June 2016 following the development and launch of the new platform This new platform i1s expected to drive @ new higher margin revenue
stream The Directors therefore confirm that they have a reasonable expectation that the Group will have adequate resources to continue in
operattonal existence for the foreseeable future and accordingly these financial statements are prepared on a going concern basis

The preparation of financial statements 1n conformity with IFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates It alse requires
management {0 exercise 1Its judgement in the process of applying the Group s accounting policies (see note 4)

212 New standards and interpretations

(a) New, revised and amended standards adopted

There were noc new or amended accounting standards relevant to the Group that were effective for the first time for the financial year
beginrung 1 July 2015 that have a matenal impact on the Group s consohdated financial statements

(b) New, revised and amended standards issued but not yet adopted

A number of new, revised and amended accounting standards and interpretations are currently endorsed but are effective for annual periods
beginning after 1 January 2016 and have not been applied in preparing these consolidated financial statements None of these are expected
to have matenal impact on the conschdated financial statements of the Group, except the following

Accounting standard Reguirement

IFRS 16 Leases Under the previous guidance (n |1AS 17 a lessee had to make a distinction between a finance lease (on balarnce
teffective for the first time for the year beginning sheet) and an operating lease (off balance sheet) The new standard reguires lessees to recognise almost all
1 July 2019 subject to EU endorsement) lease contracts on the balance sheet the only optional exemptions are for certain short term leases and

{eases of low-value assets An interest expense on the lease lWability and depreciation on the right-of-use
asset will also have to be recognised The Group 15 1n the process of assessing IFRS 16 s full impact

IFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with customers IFRS 15 deals with revenue recognition and establishes princples for reperting useful information to users
(effective for the first time for the yvear beginning of financial statements about the nature amount trrrming and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows arising
1.July 2018 subject to EU endorsement) from an entity s contracts with customers Revenue ts recogrised when a customer obtams control of a good

or service and thus has the ability 1o direct the use and obtain the benefits from the good or service The
standard replaces IAS 18 Revenue and IAS 11 Construction contracts and related interpretations The Group
15 In the process of assessing IFRS 15 s full impact

IFRS 9 Financial instruments IFRS 9 addresses the classification measurement and recogmtion of iinancial assets and hnancial habilibies

(effactive for accounting periods beginning on It replaces the guidance in 1AS 39 that relates 1o the classification and measurement of financial nstruments

or after 1 January 2018 subject 1o EUY endorsement) [FRS 9 establishes three primary measurement categories for financial assets amortised cost fair value
through other comprehensive ircome and fair value through profit or loss The basis of classification depends
on the entitys business model and the contractual cash flow charactenstics of the financial asset
tnvestments 1N equity instruments are required to be measured at farr value through prohit or loss with the
irrevocable option at inceptign to present changes in fair value in other comprehensive Income not recycling
The Group Is In the process of assessing IFRS 9 s full impact

The Group continues to monitor the potential iImpact of other new standards and interpretations which may be endorsed by the European
Union and reguire adoption by the Group in future accounting penods
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

2 2 Consolidation

The financial information conschdates the results of Monitise plc and the entities controlled by the Company and includes the Group s share
of the post-acquisition results and net assets of 1ts joint ventures for the periods covered by the financial information

(a) Subsichanes

Subsidianes are all entities (including specia! purpoese entities) over whose financial and ocperating policies the Group has the power to govern
generally accompanying a shareholding of more than one half of the voting rights The existence and effect of the potential voting rights that
are currently exerctsable or convertible are considered when assessing whether the Group controls another entity Subsidiaries are
consohdated from the date on which control is transferred to the Group They are decensolidated from the date that control ceases

The acquisition method of accounting ts used to account for business combinations by the Group The consideration transferred for the
acquisition of a subsichary comprnises the far values of the assets transferred the liabihties incurred and the eguity interests issued by the
Group The consideration transferred includes the fair value of any asset or liability resulting from a contingent consideration arrangement
Acquisition related costs are expensed as incurred ldentifiable assets acquired and hiabidities and contingent lizbihities assumed 1n a business
combination are measured inially at their far values at the acquisition date On an acquisition-by-acquisition basis the Group recogrises
any non-controlling Interest in the acquiree either at far value or at the non-controlling Interest s proportionate share of the acquiree s nef
assefs

The excess of the constderation transfarred the amount of any non-controlling nterest in the acguiree and the acquisition date fawr value of
any previous equity interest in the acquiree over the fair value of the Group s share of the identifiable net assets acquired is recorded as
goodwill If this 1s less than the fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired in the case of a bargain purchase the difference s
recognised directly in the Statement of Comprehensive Income Gains on acquisitions may arnse where the acquisition date far value of any
previous equity interest in the acquiree exceeds the book vatue of that interest

Inter-company transactions balances and unrealised gains on transactions between Group companies are ehminated Accounting policies of
subsidiaries have been changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the Group

(b} Joint venture arrangements

Joint ventures are all entities over which the Group exercises joint control Investments injoint ventures are accounted for using the equity
method of accounting and are initiatly recognised at cost The Grodp's iInvestment in joint ventures includes goodwtll identified on acquisition
net of any accumulated imparrment loss The Group's share of Its joint ventures' post-acquisition profits or losses ts recognised in the Statement
of Comprehensive Income and its share of post-acquisition movements In reserves Is recognised in equity The cumulative post-acquisition
movements are adjusted against the carrying amount of the investment When the Group s share of losses in 8 jont venture eguals or exceeds
its interest 10 the jont venture including any other unsecured receivables the Group does not recognise further losses, unless it has incurred
oblgations or made payments on behalf of the jint venture Any net joint venture liability 1s recognised (n non-current liabilities on the
Statement of Financial Position

Sales from the Group to joint ventures are recognised in full as revenue Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and its joint
ventures are elminated to the extent of the Group s interest In the Jjoint ventures Unreabsed losses are also elminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred

Accounting policies of joint ventures have been changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the Group

23 Revenue

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration received or receivable for the sale of goods and services provided within the Group s
ordinary activities net of discounts and sales taxes [t comprises user generated revenuas product licences and development and integration
services

User generated revenue relates to revenue generated from all types of end-user activity and may take various forms including per-user fees
chck fees commissions and revenue share and includes associated managed services This revenue 1s recognised as the services are
performed

Product licences are sales where the customer has the ability to exploit the hcensed functionality upon delvery and include both certamn
term-based and perpetual icences These cence revenues are recogrised as a sale of a good once all of the below recogrmtion ¢riteria have
been met

= the Group has transferred to the buyer the significant nsks and rewards of ownership of the licence

» the Group retains neither continuing managerial involvement to the degree usually associated with ownership nor effective control over
the goods sold

» the amount of revenue can be measured relably
- 1115 probable that the economic benefits associated with the transaction will Flow to the Group and

« the costs incurred or to be incurred In respect of the transaction can be measured reliably
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 30 June 2016

2 Summary of sigmificant accounting policies (continued)

2 3 Revenue {(continued)

Revenue relating to development and mtegration services contracted on a bime and matenals basis 1s recognised as the services are performed
Revenue relating to development and integration services identified as a service contract provided over a specified time period 1s recognised
an a straight-ine basis Development and integration service revenue delivered under a fixed-price contract 1s recognised on a percentage-
of-completion basis based on the extent of work comgpleted as a percentage of overall estimated project cost when the outcome of a contract
can be estimated rehabty Determining whether a contract s outcome can be estimated reliably reguires management to exercise judgement
and estimates are continually reviewed as determined by events ar circumstances Provision I1s made as soon as a loss 15 foreseen

Typically a number of the above elements may be sold together as a bundled contract Revenue 1s recognised separately for each component
If 1t 15 considered to represent a separable good or service and a fair value can be reliably established The Group may denve fair value for its
services based on a relable cost estimate plus an appropnate market-based margin Where a product licence 15 included within a bundled
arrangerment the residual value of the contract is ascribed to the product licence after a fair value has been allocated to all other components

Amounts which meet the Group s revenue recogrition policy which have not yet beeninvoiced are accounted for as accrued income whereas
amounts invoiced which have not met the Group s revenue recognition critena are deferred and are accounted for as deferred income unti
such time as the revenue can be recognised Management makes an assessment of the certainty of any accrued revenue amounts In
determining how much revenue to recogrse

2 4 Segmental reporting

An operating segment 1s a component of the Group that engages in business activities from which it may earn revenues and Incur expenses
including revenues and expeanses that relate to transactions with any of the Group s other compenents During the year ended 30 June 2016
the Group changed internal reperting from one operating segment to six The operating segments operating results are reviewed regularly
by the Board of Directors in order to make decisions about rescurces to be allocated to the segment and to assess its performance

25 Property, plant and equipment
Property plant and eguipment Is stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment Historical cost includes expenditure
that 1s directly attnbutable to the acquisition or creation of the items

Subsequent costs are included 1n the asset s carrying amount or recognised as 3 separate asset as appropriate only when it s probabte that
future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably The carrying
amount of the replaced item 1s derecognised All other repairs and maintenance are charged to the Statement of Comprehensive Income
during the financial year in which they are incurred

Depreciation on assets 1§ calculated using the straight-line method to allocate their costs over the lower of their estimated usefu! lives or
term of lease as follows
Estimated useful lives

Office eqguipment 3 -5 years
Computer equipment 3 -5 vyears
Leasehold improvements Lower of 10 — 15 years or the term of the lease to the first break

The assets residual values and useful lives are reviewed and ad)usted If appropriate at each year end reporting date An assets carrying
amount 15 wnitten down immediately to its recoverable amount If the asset s carrying amount 1s greater than its estimated recoverable amount

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount and are recognised within the Statement
of Comprehensive Income

26 Goodwill
Goodwill ansing on the acquisition of an entity represents the excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group s interest 1n the net fair value
of the identifiable assets liabilities and contingent habihties of the entity recognised at the date of acquisition

Goodwilt 1s imitially recogrused as an asset at cost and s subsequently measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses It s held in
the currency of the acqured entity and revalued at the closing rate at the reporting date Goodwill on acquisition of subsidiaries 1s included
in intangible assets Goodwill on acquisition of jont ventures s included in the carrying amount of those investments

Goodwill 15 not subject to amortisation but 1s tested at least annually for impairment or more frequently (f events or changes in circumstances
indicate a potential impairment (see note 2 8) On disposal of a subsichary or a jointly controlled entity, the atinbutable amount of goodwill
15 Included in the determunation of the profit or loss recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income on disposal
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies {(continued)

27 Other intangible assets

Expenditure incurred in the development of software products, and therr related intellectual property rights, 1s capitalised as an intangible
asset oniy when technical feasibility has been demonstrated adequate technical financial and other resources exist to complete the
development which the Group intends to complete and use, future econormic benefits expected to anse are deemed probable and the costs
can be reliably measured Research costs and development costs not meeting these critena are expensed in the Statement of Comprehensive
Income as incurred Capitalised development costs are amortised as a charge to the Statement of Comprehensive Income within amortisation
on a straight-hne basis over their useful economic lives Capitahsed development costs for assets which are not yet in use are tested for
impairment annually or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate a potential impairment Separately acquired licences
have a finite useful life and are carned at cost less accumulated amortisation

Contractual customer relationships technology-related intangible assets and software licences purchased or acguired 1n a business
combination are recegnised at fair value at the acquisition date These assets have finite useful lives and are carned at cost less accumulated
amortisation
Amortisation on the assets 15 calculated using the straight-line method over their estimated useful lives as follows

Esumated useful hives

Customer contracts 1 -8 years
Intellectual property rights 7 years
Acquired technology 3~ 6 years
Purchased software licences 1-5years
Acquired software icences 3 -7 years
Capitalised development costs 3 - 4 years

2 8 Impasrment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful hfe, for example goodwill are not subject to amortisabion and are tested annually for impairment or
more frequently If events or changes in circurnstances indicate a potenhial impairment Assets that are subject to amortisation or depreciation
are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes n circumstances Indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable An
impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount The recoverable amount
15 the higher of an asset's fair value less costs to sell and value in use For the purposes of assessing mpairment assets are grouped at the
lowest levels for which there are separately idenbfiable cash flows (cash-generating units) Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units or
groups of cash generating units for the purpose of impairment reviews {see note 12} Non-financtal assets other than goodwill that suffered
impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting date

2 3 Financial iInstruments

Financial assets

The Group classifies 1ts financial assets, and cash and cash equivalents as loans and receivables The classification depends on the purpose
for which the financial assets were acquired Management determines the classification of its financial assets at initial recegnition

Loans and receivables are non-denvative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market They
are included in current assets, except for maturities greater than 12 months after the end of reporting period date These are classified as
non-currert assets

The Group s financial assets are disclosed In notes 15 16 and 23 Impairment testing of trade receivables 1s described in note 15

Financial labiities

The Group has two categories of financral habidities, which are financial llabilities measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method and financial habilities at fair value through profit or loss (designated on imtial recognition) Both categores are classified as non-
current when payments fall due greater than 12 months after the end of the reporting penod

Financiai habiities are described in further detail in notes 19, 21 and 23

Denwvative finanaial instruments are intially recogrised at fair value on the date a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently re-
measured to their fair value at each reporting date The method of recogrising the resulting gain or loss depends on whether the derwvative
1s designated as a hedging instrument and f 50 the nature of the item being hedged The Group does not currently designate any derivatives
as hedging mstruments Gans and losses on derivative instruments that are not designated as hedge instruments are recognised immediately
in the Statement of Comprehensive Income within finance costs

Fair value estimation for financial lrabihties

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded In an active market 1s determined by using valuation techmiques The Group s financial
habilities at fair value primanly comprise contingent consideration payable on acquisitions The Group uses a vanety of methods to determine
the fair value including pncing models which reflect the specific instrument Management uses judgement to select a variety of methods and
make assumpltions that are based on market conditions existing at the end of the reporting pernod as well as internal nformation regarding
a vanety of probable outcomes
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

210 Trade recewvables

Trade recervables are inihally recognised at fair value and subsequently held at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method Trade
recevables with standard payment terms of between 30 to 45 days are recogrised and carried at the lower of therr original invoiced or
recoverable amount Where the time value of money 15 material receivables are carred at amortised cost Provision is made when there is
objective evidence that the Group will not be able to recover balances in full, the amount of the provision being the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the oniginal effective interest rate Balances are
written off when the prebability of recovery I1s assessed as being remote

2N Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents includes cash in hand deposits held on call with banks and other short-term highly iquid investments with original
maturities of three months or less Bank overdrafts are included within financial liabilities

212 Short-term investments
Short-term investments clude cash held on long-term deposits with oniginal matunities of greater than three months

213 Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity

Share premium recognised on the 1ssue of share capital 1s stated as the excess consideration received over the nominal value of shares issued,
net of any costs directly attributable to the ssue

214 Shares to be 1ssued
Deferred consideration or shares not yet issued at the balance sheet date in respect of business combinations in the form of a fixed number
of shares are recorded tn equity as shares to be 1ssued ai fair value at the acquisition date

215 Merger reserve
The merger reserve 15 used where more than 90% of the shares 1n a subsidary are acquired and the consideration inciudes the 1ssue of new
shares by the Company thereby attracting merger relief under the Companies Act 2006

216 Trade pavables
Trade payables are recognised tnitially at farr value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method

217 Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised intially at fair value net of {ransaction costs incurred Borrowings are subsequently stated at amortised cost any
difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption value 1s recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive
Income over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest method

Borrowings are classified as current liabihties unless the Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12
months after the reporting date

218 Currant and deferred income tax
The current iIncome tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date in the countries
where the Company s subsidiaries operate and generate taxable income

Ceferred income tax is recognised in full, using the hability method, on temporary differences anising between the tax bases of assets and
habilities and their carrying amounts in the consolidated financral statements Deferred iIncome tax 1s not provided on the imitial recognition
of an asset or hability in a transaction other than a business combination if at the time of the transactton there i1s no effect on either accounting
or taxable profit or loss

Deferred income tax i1s determined using tax rates and laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date and are
expected to apply when the related deferred income tax asset or liability s released or settied

Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the extent that it 1s probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilised

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary differences arising on tnvestments in subsidiaries associates and joint ventures except where
the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference 1s controlled by the Group and it 1s probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse In the foreseeable future

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there 1s a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets against current tax
habibties and when they relate to income tax levied by the same taxation authornty and the Group intends to settle current tax assets and
habibties on a net basis

Current and deferred tax are recognised in the profit and loss except when they relate to items that are recognised In other comprehensive
income or directly in equity in which case the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other comprehensive iIncome or directly 1n
equity respectively
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2 Summary of sigmficant accounting policies {continued)
219 Employee benefits

(a) Pension obligations

Tha Group operates defined contribution plans

The Group pays contributions to privately administered pension insurance plans on a contractual basis The Group has ne further payment
obhigations once the contributions have been paid The contributions are recogmsed as an employee benefit expense when they are due
Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in the future payments 1s available

(b) Share-based compensation

The Group operates a number of equity-settled, share-based compensation plans The fair value of the employee services receved In exchange
for the grant of the options 1s recognised as an expense The total amount to be expensed over the vesting period s determined by reference
to the far value of the options granted, excluding the impact of any non-market vesting conditions (for example service period and sales
growth targets) Non-market vesting conditions are included in assumptions about the number of options that are expected to vest At each
reporting date the entity revises its esbtimates of the number of options that are expected to vest It recognises the impact of the revision to
onginal estimates, iIf any i the Statement of Comprehensive Income with a corresponding adjustment to equity The proceeds received net
of any directly attributable transaction costs are credited to share capital (norminal value) and share premivm when the options are exercised
and the overall charge for those options 1s transferred from the share-based payment reserve to accumulated losses

The grant by the Company of options over its equity instruments to the employees of subsidiary undertakings in the Group 1$ treated as a
capital contribution The fair value of employee services received measured by reference to the grant date fair value 1s recognised over the
vesting penod as an Increase in iInvestments in subsidiary undertakings with a corresponding credit to equity

220 Leases

Leases 1n which a sigrificant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as operating leases
Payments macde under operating leases {net of any incentives received from the lessor) are charged to the Statement of Comprehensive
Income on a straight-line basis over the penod of the lease Assets held under finance leases which transfer to the Group substantially all the
risks and benefits incidental to ownership of the leased item are capitalised at the inception of the lease, with a corresponding hability being
recognised for the lower of the fair value of the leased asset and the present value of the munimum lease payments Lease payments are
apportioned between the reduction of the lease liability and finance charges in the Statement of Comprehensive Income so as to achieve 2
constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the hiability Assets hetd under finance leases are depreciated over the shorter of the
estimated useful life of the asset and the lease term

2 21 Foreign currency translation

(@) Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of the Groups entities are measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates (the ‘functional currency’) The consolidated financiat statements are presented in thousands of
Pounds (£'000), which is the Company s functional and the Group's presentation currency

¢b) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions
Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the translation of monetary assets and fiabilities
denominated in foreign currencies at the year end rates are recogrised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income Foreign exchange gains
and losses on borrowings mvestments and cash and cash equivalents are presented in the Statement of Comprehensive Inceme within finance
costs All other foreign exchange gains and losses are presented within operating resuits

(¢) Group companies and joint ventures
The results and financial position of all subsidianes (none of which have the currency of a hyper-inflationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from the presentation currency are translated into the presentation currency as follows

1) assets and liabiliies for each Statement of Financial Position presented are translated at the closing rate at the reporting date

1) income and expenses for each Statement of Comprehensive Income are translated at average exchange rates (unless this average is not
a reasonable approximation of the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on the transaction dates in which case ncome and expenses
are translated at the rate on the dates of the transactions), and

u) all resulting exchange differences are recognised as a separaie component of equity within the foreign exchange transiation reserve

On consolidation, exchange differences ansing from the translation of the net investment in foreign operations and of borrowings and other
currency instruments designated as hedges of such nvestments are taken to other comprehensive iIncome When a foreign operation i1s
partially disposed of or sold, exchange differences that were recorded in equity are recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income
as part of the gain or loss on sale

2 22 Investments
Investments held by the Company in its subsidiary undertakings are stated at cost less provision for any impairment in value imparment
reviews are performed If events or changes in circumnstances indicate a potential impairment

2 23 Government grants

Government grants are recogrised when It 15 reasonable to expect that the grants will be received and that all related conditions will be met
usually on subrmission of a vahid claim for payment Government grants are of a revenue nature and are credited to deferred income on receipt
They are then deducted from the expenditure to which they relate over time
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

2 24 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event it 1s probable that the
Group will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation

The amount recognised as a provision I1s the best estimate of the consideration required to seitle the present obligation at the end of the
reporting period taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation When a provision 15 measured using the cash
flows estimated to settle the present obligatton, its carrying amount i1s the present value of those cash flows (when the effect of the time
value of money 15 matenal)

2 25 Exceptional items
These are items which In management s Judgement, need to be disclosed by virtue of their size or nature in grder for the user to obtain a
proper understanding of the financial information

3 Financial risk management

21 Fwnancial nsk factors

The Group s activities expose It to a varnety of financial nsks ansing from its use of financial Instruments credit nisk, hquidity rnsk and market
risk

This note describes the Group s objectives pohcies and processes for managing those risks and the methods used to measure them Further
quantitative information in respect of these risks 1s presented throughout these financial statements The Group continues to operate
in multiple geographies including the US and Turkey, which will have an increasing impact on the Group’s financial nsk factors So far there
have been no substantive changes in the Group s exposure to financial iInstrument risks 1ts objectives, policies and pracesses for managing
those risks or the methods used to measure them from previous pencds unless otherwise stated in this note

The principal financial instruments held by the Group from which financial instrument risks anse, are as follows
+ trade and other recewvables

+ cash at bank,

» trade and other payables and

« finance leases

The Board has overall responsibility for the determination of the Group s nsk management objectives and policies and whilst retaining ultimate
responsibility for them, it has delegated the authority for designing and operating processes that ensure the effective tmplementation of the
objectives and pohcies to the Group's finance function The Board reviews regular finance reports from the Chief Operating Officer through
which it evaluates any nsk exposures with a view to minumising any potential adverse effects on the Groups financial performance
Transactions that are speculative In nature are expressly forbidden

Details regarding the policies that address financial risk are set out below

{a) Credit risk
Credht rnisk anises principally from the Group's trade recevables, cash and cash equivalents and short-term investments 1t 1s the risk that the
counterparty fails to discharge ts obligation in respect of the instruments

Trade recevables

The nature of the Group s operations means that most of its current key customers form part of established businesses in the banking and
payments sector and mobile network operatars sector The credit risks are minimised due to the nature of these customers and the
concentration of sales to date within established economies The Group continually reviews its credit risk palicy, taking particular account of
future exposure to developing markets and associated changes in customers credit rnsk profiles

The carrying amount In the Statement of Financial Position net of any applicable provisions represents the amount exposed to credit risk
and hence there 15 no difference between the carrying amount and the maximum credit risk exposure

Cash and cash equivalents

The Board formulates the Group s treasury policy objectives and polictes which are designed to manage the Group's risk and secure cost-
effective funding for the Group's operations These objectives include the requirement to minimise risk on investment funds but maintam
flexibiity The majonity of funds are currently held in a rmix of short-term deposit accounts
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3 Financial risk management (continued)

31 Financial nsk factors (continued}

(b} Liquichty nisk

Lrquidity risk anses from the Group's management of working capital It 1s the nsk that the Group will encounter difficulty in meeting 1ts
financial obligations as they fall due

The Group s policy (s to ensure that it will always have sufficient cash within the Group (excluding the joint venture companies) to allow it to
meet 1ts labilities when they become due and to have such funds avadable for its operations Management monitors roliing forecasts of the
Group s hquidity reserve which compnses cash and cash equivalents {note 16) on the basis of expected cash flow At the reporting date
these projections indicate that the Group expects to have sufficient liquid rescurces to meet Its obligations under ail reasonable expected
circumstances for the forthcoming year The Group continues to monitor its hquidity position through budgetary procedures and cash flow
analysis

The table below analyses the Group's financial habiities into relevant matunity grouptngs based on the remaning penod from the reporting
date to the contractual matunty date The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows

30 June 2006

Between Between
Laas than tand 2 2and S Over
1 year years years S years
£7000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Trade and other payables 14,880 - 285 -
Prowvisions 10,864 4,851 3,165 -
Finance leases 977 892 - -

30 June 2015

Between Between
Less than land 2 2and 5 Over
1 year years years 5 years
£ 000 £ Q00 E Q00 £000
Trade and other payables 24,607 263 - -
Financial izbilities at fair value through profit or loss 9,775 - - -
Provisions 14,658 9,500 5,700 -
Finance leases 318 269 93 -

(c) Market risk
Market risk anises from the Group s use of interest-bearing and foreign currency financial instruments There 15 the sk that the fair value or
future cash flows of a financial Instrument will fluctuate because of changes In interest rates (interest rate nisk) or foreign exchange rates
(currency rnsk)

(1) Interest rate risk

The Group Invests 1ts surplus cash in a spread of fixed-rate term bank deposits to minimise nsk and maximise flexibibty In doing so it imits
Its exposure to fluctuations v nterest rates that are mherent tn such a market Overall risk i1s not regarded as significant and the effect of a
one half percentage point decrease sn the average interest rate during the year would have resulted In an increase in post-tax foss for the
year of £328 000 (2005 increase of £442 000) and a decrease in equity of £328 000 (2015 decrease of £442000)

() Currency risk

The Group currently operates internationally primanly through its subsidiaries in the US and Turkey The Group has matenal US Dollar
denominated contracts and a matenal Euro denominated contract operated from the UK As a result, the Group s main exposure to foreign
exchange anises from the US Dollar Turkish Lira, Euro and there i1s some exposure to other currencies The level of nskis reviewed regularly
throughout the year Foregn exchange risk anses from future commercial transactions recogmnised assets and habilities and net investments

In order to reduce the foreign exchange risk arising, the Groups policy 15 to allow the operations to settle habilities denominated in ther
functional currency with the funds obtamed from the activities ansing in that currency The Group typically holds funds in US Dollar deposits
to meet its anticipated short-term funding requirements for the US subsidianes Given the current scate and natural hedging of the Group s
overseas operations overall foreign currency nsk remains relatively low The Group cutrently considers denvative forward exchange contracts,
where appropriate to hedge foreign currency nisk on certain forecast and recognised assets and habdities

A 6% appreciation in the average 2016 US Dollar exchange rate would have increased the Group s 1oss after tax by £646 000 (2015 increase
of £684,000) At 30 June 2016 the effect on retained earnings of a 6% appreciaticn in the closing US Dollar exchange rate would be an
increase of £88,000 (2015 increase of £832 000) The effect on the foraign exchange reserve of a 6% appreciation in the closing US Dollar
exchange rate would be an increase of £215 000 (2015 decrease of £529 000)

A 15% appreciation In the average 2016 Turkish Lira exchange rate would have decreased the Group s loss after tax by £102,000 (2015 decrease
of EN7.000) At 30 June 2016, the effect on retained earnings of a 15% appreciation in the closing Turkish Lira exchange rate would be an
increase of £719,000 (2015 increase of £552 000) The effect on the foreign exchange reserve of a 15% appreciation in the closing Turkish
Lira exchange rate would be a decrease of £716 000 (2015 decrease of £549,000)
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3 Financial risk management (continued)

3 2 Capital nsk management

The Group s objective when managing capital 1s to safeguard the Group s ability to continue as & going concern In order to provide future
returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital The
Group seeks to maintain, at this stage of 1ts development sufficient funding drawn pnmarily from equity to enable the Group to meet its
working capstal and strategic needs The Group may Issue new shares or realise value from its existing mvestments and other assets as deemed
necessary

The Group centrally manages borrowings, iInvestment of surplus funds and financial risks The cbjective of halding financial investments 1s to
provide efficient cash and tax management and effective funding for the Group

4 Critical accounting estimates and judgements

The preparation of the financial statements requires the Group to make estimates judgements and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets liabiities revenues and expenses and related disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities The Directors base their
estimates on historical experience and various other assumptions that they believe are reasonable under the circumstances, the results of
which form the basis for making judgements about the carrying value of assets and hiabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources
Actual results may differ from these estimates under different assumptions or conditions

In the process of applying the Group's accounting peohcies managerment has made a number of judgements and esttmations of which the
fellowing are deemed to have the most significant effect on amounts recognised in the financial statements

47 Revenue recognition

Revenue for development and integration services 1s recognised when the right to consideration s earned as each project progresses
Provisicns against accrued income are made as and when management becomes aware of objective evidence that the amount of time werked
will not be recoverable in full

The Group socmetimes enters INto agreements with customers where a product ficence 1s bundled with services Revenue I1s recognised
separately for each component iIf 1t 1s considered to represent a separable good or service and a fair value can be rehably established This
consideration requires an element of judgement

4 2 Share-based payments

Judgement and estimation are required in determining the fair value of shares at the date of award The fair value 1s estimated using valuation
techniques which take into account the award s term the risk-free interest rate and the expected volatility of the market price of the Company s
shares Judgement and estimation are also required to assess the number of options expected to vest Detalls of share-based payments and
the assumptions applied are disclosed in note 25

4 3 Going concern

The Directors have prepared projections of the Groups anticipated future results based on therr best judgement and estimation of hkely
future developments within the business and therefore believe that the assumption that the Group 1s a going concern s valid The financial
infermation in this report has therefore been prepared on the going concern basis

4 4 Development costs

The Group has capitalised internally generated intangible assets as required 1n accordance with IAS 38 Management has assessed expected
contnbution 1o be generated from these assets and deemed that no adjustment 1s required to the carrying value of the assets except where
disclosed in note 12 The recoverable amount of the assets has been determined based on value in use calculations which require the use of
estimates and [udgements Management reviews the assets for impairment on a regular basis

4 5 Impairment of assets
IFRS requires management to undertake an annual test for impairment of assets with indefinite lives, including goodwill and for assets with
fimte hves, to test for impairment If events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrymg amount of an asset may not be recoverable

Impairment testing s an area invelving management Judgement, requiring assessment as to whether the carrying value of assets can be
supported by the fair value less costs to sell or net present velue of future cash flows derived from such assets using cash flow projections
which have been discounted at an appropriate rate In calculating the net present value of the future cash flows certain assumptions are
required to be made In respect of highly uncertain matters including management s expectations of growth and discount rates Changing
the assumphtions selected by management could significantly affect the Group s impairment evaluation and, hence, results The Group's review
includes the key assumptions related to sensitivity in the cash flow projections Further details are prowded in note 12

4 6 Deferred tax

Deferred tax assets and liabilities require management judgement in determming the amounts to be recognised In particular judgement (s
used when assessing the extent to which deferred tax assets should be recognised with consideration given to the timing and level of future
taxable income

4 7 Useful economic lives of assets

The Group has reviewed and exercised jJudgement over the useful economic life of intangible assets and property, plant and equipment This
has resulted in a reduction of the useful lives and a corresponding Increase in the amortisation charge for certain intangible assets Further
details are provided In note 12
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4 Critical accounting estimates and judgements (continued)

4 8 Prowisions

Management uses judgement to estimate the consideration required to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period taking
nto account the nisks and uncertainties surrounding the obhgation Judgement has been exercised with regard to the length of penod for
which surplus properties remain vacant Judgement has been exercised In respect of the expected settlernent of other onerous contracts
Details are set out further in note 20

5 Segmental information

Reportable segments

Monitise s operating segments are reported based on the information reviewed by the chief operating decision maker for the purposes of
allocating resources and assessing performance The Board of Directors i1s the Group s chief operating decision maker

The Board of Directors considers revenue cost of sales operating costs exceptional costs and EBITDA of the Group as a whole when assessing
the performance of the business and making decisions about the allocation of resources In addition the Board reviews revenue spit by
business unit products and geographies to assist with the allocation of resources During the current financial year the Group changed the
internal reporting from one cperating segment to six in order to more accurately reflect the way that the business now operates and to
provide greater insight and focus on each type of activity

The results from continuing operations n the format as provided to the Board has not been reproduced below and c¢an be found in the
Statement of Comprehenstve Income on page 26

The prior year comparatives have been compited from the underlying records using best estimates to allocate the results to the new operating
segments however the Board managed the Group as one segment during that year The segmental analysis for the current financial year
also Includes a best esttmate allocation of the results prior to the reorganisation to the new business segments

Geographical disclosures
In presenting information on the basis of geography revenue is based on the location of the customers Non-current assets are based on the
geographical location of those assets

Revenues Non current assets

2016 2015 2016 2015

£'000 E 000 £ 000 £000

United Kingdom 41,878 54,511 17,798 63,153

Americas 18,568 25,114 11,868 142,498

Turkey 5,166 4,731 8,397 16,549

Europe 1,476 2,787 - -

Rest of world 457 2,557 1,800 1,849

Total 67,565 89,700 39,863 224,049
Revenue has been allocated to geographical segments based upon the location of the customer

Products and services
Revenues

206 2005

£'000 £ 000

Product licences 1,111 11.875

Platform supply and transactions 32,830 33,089

User generated revenue 33,9431 44,964

Development and integration services 33,624 44,736

TJotal 67,565 89 700

Praduct licences are sales where the customer has the ability to exploit the hcensed functionality upon delivery and includes certain
term-based and perpetual heences (see note 2 3 for further information)

Revenues denved from single customers whose revenues are 10% or greater than overall Group revenues In either the current ar prior financial
year are given below

Revenues
2016 2015
£'000 £ 000
External customer 15,943 15,855
External customer 6,680 8,251

Monitise pic  Annual Report 2016 4]




Financial Statements

Notes to the consolidated financial statements

for the year ended 30 June 2016

5 Segmental information (continued)
Segment revenues and results

The following i1s an analysis of the Group s revenue and results by reportable segment for the year ended 30 June 2016

Americas Europe FINKIt Craate MEA Content Unaliocated Total
£'000 £'000 £'000 £000 £ 000 £000 £'000 £°000
External revenue 19,088 29,001 463 4,218 5,160 9,635 - 67,565
Inter-segment revenue - 1,340 - 1,504 2,916 307 (6,067) -
Total revenue 19,088 30,341 463 5,722 8,076 9,942 (6,067) 67,565
EBITDA {3,093) (4,870) (3,827) (1,221) 1,050 2,745 {10,407) (19,623)
Depreciation amortisation
and impairments (205,216)
Other exceptional items (3,492)
Share of loss of jornt ventures (58)
Share-based payments {16,468)
Net finance income 1,775
Loss before income tax (243,082)
The following 1s an analysis of the Group s revenue and results by reportable segment for the year ended 30 June 2015
Americas Europe FINKit Create MEA Content Unallocated Total
£ 000 £000 £Q00 £000 £000 £000 E000 E000
External revenue 25603 45,311 - 7,447 4,731 6,608 - 89,700
Inter-segment revenue 301 471 - 7.009 2,545 261 (10,587) -
Total revenue 25,804 45,782 - 14,456 7.276 6,869 {10,587) 89,700
EBITDA (5,219) (18 334) (2,323 1,798 1,082 987 (19,791) (41 800)
Depreciation amortisation
and (mpairments (119 196)
Other exceptional iterns (34 151)
Share of loss of joint ventures {3788
Share-based payments 27977
MNet finance expense (521)
Loss before iIncome tax (227.433)
Segment assets and habilities
The following 1s an analysis of the Group s assets and liabilities by reportable segment as at 30 June 2016
Amaricas Eurcpe FINKit Create MEA Content Unallocatad Total
£'000 £'000 £'000 £000 £000 £'000 £000 £000
Segment operating assets 7,885 43,098 582 9,922 14,092 12,038 10,267 97,934
Total assets 7.88B5 43,098 582 9,922 14,092 12,088 10,267 97,934
Segment operating liabilities 9,878 10,658 337 0,336 690 2,187 (6,509) 22,577
Deferred tax 1,021
Provisions 18,880
Financial habilities 1,808
Total habilities 44,287
The following ts an analysis of the Group s assets and liabilittes by reporiable segment as at 30 June 2015
Americas Europe FINKit Craate MEA Content Unallocated Total
£000 € 000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Segment operating assets 149,145 79,030 400 33 447 21209 29,745 27,698 340,674
Total assets 149,145 79,030 400 33,447 21209 29,745 27,698 340,674
Segment operating habilitres 10,365 28,712 79 5271 854 4,745 (11 572) 38,454
Deferred tax 10 208
Provisions 29,858
Frnancial labilities 10,371
Total habilities 88,891
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6 Operating loss
Thes 1s stated after charging/(crediting)

2016 2015
Group Note £'000 E 000
Employee benefit expense 26 40,857 72,360
Deprecration 11 2,814 4,204
Impairment of property plant and equipment 11 3,268 1501
Amortisation 12 25,465 20671
Impairment of iIntangible assets 12 172,728 92,380
Impairment of iInvestment In joint venture 14 941 440
(Profit)/loss on disposal of property plant and equipment (35) 24
Net foreign currency differences 306 766
Operating lease expense 3.832 4963

Included within the operating loss 1s an amount in respect of research and development of £7340 000 (2015 £25,803 000)
Exceptional items comprise

2016 2005
£'000 £ 000
Exceptional Income (€,874) -
Onerous contracts (3,190) 28 475
Restructuring costs 8,734 4,485
Surplus property costs 4,382 1,817
Strategic Review and corporate development costs 440 1,945
Adjustment to contingent consideration - 1,314
Release of acguisition-related liabilities - (3,885)
3,492 34,151

The exceptional income relates to an amount recerved In respect of a revision to a customer contract

Onerous contracts relate to those contracts under which the unavaidable costs of meeting the obligations under the contract exceed the
economic benefit expected to be receved under it in particular, obligations associated with a number of contracts with a third party IT and
business services provider were provided in the prior year The credit for onerous contracts in the current year reflects the settlement of
some of these obhligations at amounts less than those previously provided

Restructuring costs are assoclated with a number of restructuring activities undertaken and principally relate to redundancy and termination
costs Additionally the associated property restructuring activities resulted in a charge for several cnerous property lease contracts

Strategic Review and corporate development costs in the prior year related primarily to professional advisor fees incurred in respect of
Monitise’s review of Its strategy and ownership structure announced on 22 January 2015 Current year costs are associated with a number of
corporate develcpment projects

Adjustments to contingent consideration reftect the recalculation of amounts owed to former shareholders of the acquired businesses based
on performance related criteria in accordance with acquisition related contracts

The release of acquisition-related acquired habilities relates to the settlement of & number of historic patent claims associated with the
previous acquisition of Monitise Americas, Inc (fermerly Clairmail Inc)

The exceptional items are separately disclosed due to their size or nature in order to provide a proper understancding of the financial information

7 Auditors’ remuneration
The analysis of the auditors remuneration is as follows

2016 2015
Group £'000 £ 000
Fees payable to the Company's auditors and their associates for the audit of the Company s annual financial statements 21 90
Fees payable to the Company s auditors and their associates for other services to the Group
The audit of the Cormpany s subsidianes 181 216
Total audit fees 272 06
QOther services
Audit-related assurance services 30 20
Tax compliance services 4 124
Tax advisory services 224 186
Other assurance services - 285
Corporate finance services - 275
Total other services 258 900
Total fees 530 1,206

Included within total auditors remuneration for the year ended 30 June 201515 an amount of £560 000 associated with the Strategic Review
process which has been charged to exceptional items in that year
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8 Finance income and expenses

2016 2015
Group £000 £ 000
Finance income
Interest income on short-term depostts 328 442
Net foreign exchange gains on financing activities 1,647 27¢
1,975 712
Finance costs
Interest payable on overdrafts and loans (56) (28)
Interest payable on finance leases {144) (85)
Unwind of discount on financial instruments - (1.120)
{200} (1,233
1,775 (521)
9 Income tax
Recogrused in the Statement of Comprehensive Income
2016 2015
Note £000 E 00O
Current tax
Current tax overseas withholding and other taxes (6) (20}
Other taxes (46) (114)
Adiustments in respect of prior years - 3
Total current tax {52) (131
Deferred tax
QOrigination and reversal of temporary differences 22 9,763 4013
Total deferred tax 9,763 4,013
Total tax credit in the Statement of Comprehensive income 9,711 3.882

Reconciliation of effective tax rate

Changes to the UK corporation tax rates were substantively enacted on 18 Novernber 2015 These included reductions to the main rate to 19%
from 1 Apnl 2017 and to 18% from 1 April 2020 As these charges had been substantively enacted at the balance sheet date therr effects are
included in these financial statements A further reduction to the main tax rate to 7% from 1 April 2020 was announced 1n the budget on
16 March 2016 As this change had not been substantively enacted at the balance sheet date, its effect 1s not included in these financial
statements Had this change been appled at the balance date, it would have had no effect on the deferred tax hability or the tax credit

The credit for the year I1s lower (2015 lower) than the standard rate of corporation tax in the UK of 20% (2015 20 75%) The differences are

explained below

2016 2015
Note £'000 £ 000
Loss before income tax {243,0B2) (227,4332)
Tax calculated at UK effective tax rate of 20% (2015 2075%) (48,616) (47,192)
Effects of
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 37,804 22,430
Income not subject to tax - 91
Change In unrecegnised deferred tax assets 9,121 23,263
Use of losses for which a deferred tax asset has not previously been recognised (16) (197)
Overseas withholding and other taxes 52 113
Remeasurement of deferred tax for changes in tax rates 22 (13) 451
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiariés operating in other junsdtctions (8,055) (3,624)
Joint ventures results reported net of tax 12 786
Adpustments in respect of prior years - &)
Total tax in the Statement of Comprehensive Income (9,711) (3,882
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10 Loss per share
Basic and diluted

Basic loss per share 1s calculated by dwiding the loss attributable to owners of the parent by the weighted average number of Ordinary shares
inissue during the year As the Group is loss-making any share options in 1ssue are considered to be 'ant-dilutive  As such there is no separate

caleulation for diluted loss per share

Details of the loss and weighted average number of shares used In the calculation are set out below

2016 2015
Waighted Weighted
average average
Loszs for number Loss par Loss for number Loss per
the year of shares share the year of shares share
£'000 (thousands) {pance) £ 000 (thousands) (pence)
Loss attributable to owners of the parent (233,371) 2,215,733 (105) (223551) 2069,164 (10 8)
11 Property, plant and equipment
Office Computer Leasehold
equipment eguipment IMprovements Total
Group £ 000 £ 000 £ 000
Cost
As at 1July 2004 1,124 9,386 5,137 15,647
Exchange differences 143 14 23 134
Additions 460 2,103 358 2921
Disposals (479 (3,214) 47) (3,740)
As at 30 June 2015 1,248 8,285 5,425 14,962
Accumuiated depreciation and impairment
As at 1 July 2014 416 4,299 797 5,512
Exchange differences 152 34 [¢8)] 185
Charge 412 2,960 832 4,204
Impairment - 427 1,074 1,501
Disposals (462) (3,209) (45) (3718)
As at 30 June 2015 518 4,511 2,657 7 686
Net book value
As at 1July 2014 708 5,087 4 340 10,135
As at 30 June 2015 730 3778 2,768 7.276
Cost
As at 1 July 2045 1,248 8,289 5,425 14,962
Exchange differences 138 435 159 732
Additions 4 1,504 127 1635
Disposals (319 (5 439) - (5.758)
As at 30 June 2016 1,071 4,789 5711 11,571
Accumulated depreciation and impairment
As at 1 July 2015 518 4,511 2,657 7.686
Exchange differences 79 139 4 222
Charge 217 2,042 855 2,814
Impairment 325 1,606 1,337 3,268
Disposals (319) {5,43B) - (5,757)
As at 30 June 2016 820 2,860 4,553 8,233
Net book value
As at 1 July 2015 730 3,778 2768 7.276
As at 30 June 2016 251 1,929 1,158 3,338

The impairment charge relates to the write-off of leasehold improverments associated with certain vacated property leases and computer
equipment which had become redundant mainly as a conseguence of the restructuring activittes conducted Fully depreciated and impared
assets have been treated as disposals as they have no residual value

The Company does not have any property plant or equipment

Annual Report 2016

45



Financial Statements

Notes to the consolidated financial statements

for the year ended 30 June 2016

11 Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Property plant and equipment includes the following amounts where the Group 1s a lessee under a finance lease

2016 2015
Computer Leaschold Computer Leasehold
equipment Improvements Total equipment mprovemnents Total
folels] £000 £'000 £ 000 £ 000 E0QQ
Cost 1,516 763 2,279 280 1,022 1,302
Accumulated depregiation (471) (357) (828) (233) (348) (581)
Neat book value as at 30 June 1,045 406 1,451 47 674 721

The Group leases vanous leasehold improvements and computer equipment under non-cancellable finance lease arrangements (see note 21)

The lease terms are between three and five years

12 Intangible assets

Purchased
tntellectual and acquired Capitaiised
Customer property Acquwed software  development

Goodwill contracts nghts technoclogy licences costs Total
Group £000 EQQQ £ 000 £000 £000 £000 £ 000
Cost
As at 1 July 2014 196,394 45,694 277 26,744 16,986 36,383 322,478
Exchange differences 8,536 473 - 333 (147) 179 9,374
Additions - - - - 3.051 29,611 32,662
Disposals - - - - (2,007 - (2,007
As at 30 June 2015 204,930 46 167 277 27,077 17 883 66,173 362,507
Accumulated amortisation and impairment
As at 1 July 2014 1,546 7.997 222 6 936 4,164 13,846 34711
Exchange differences 1 368 (¢}] 226 (146) 31 479
Charge - 6 601 31 5,026 3,803 5,210 20,671
Impairment 40 223 1853 - 3,365 9,533 37,406 92,380
Disposals - - - - 2007 - (2,007)
As at 30 June 2015 41,770 16,819 252 15,553 15,347 56,493 146,234
Net book value
As at 1 July 2014 194,848 37,697 55 19,808 12,822 22,537 287,767
As at 30 June 2015 163,160 29 348 25 11,524 2,536 9,680 216,273
Cost
As at i July 2015 204,930 46,167 277 27077 17.883 66,173 362,507
Exchange differences 25,226 5,743 - 2,352 305 1,257 34,883
Additions - - - - 1,988 6,333 8,321
Disposals (183,230) (8,595) Q77 (6,422) (11525) (4,262) (214,311}
As at 30 June 2016 46,926 43,315 - 23,007 8,651 69,501 191,400
Accumulated amortisation and impairment
As at 1 July 2015 41,770 16 819 252 15,553 15,347 56,493 146,234
Exchange differences 18,208 4,096 - 1963 335 527 25,129
Charge - 15162 15 6,017 2253 2,018 25,465
Impairment 162,738 7.464 10 2200 316 - 172,728
Disposals (183,230) (8 595) 277) (6,422 (11,525) (4,262 (214,311)
As at 30 June 2016 319,486 34,846 - 19,311 6,726 54,776 155,245
Net book value
As at 1 July 2015 163,160 29 348 25 11,524 2.536 9 680 216,273
As at 30 June 2016 7,440 8,369 - 3,696 1,925 14,725 36,155

Fully amortised and impaired assets have been treated as disposals as they have no residual value

During the year the useful economic lives of intangible assets were reviewed within the Group accounting policies As a result, an accelerated
amortisation charge of £2 510 000 was recarded in respect of Acquired Technology and £9 148 000 in respect of Customer Contracts
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12 Intangible assets (continued)
Software includes the following amounts where the Group 1s a lessee under a finance lease

2018 2015

£'000 £000

Cost 883 -
Accumulated depreciation (315) -
Net book value as at 30 June 568 -

The Company does not have any intangible assets

Impairment in the year

The Group has impaired intangible assets during the year following indications that impairments were reguired Impairments comprise goodwill
and other intangible assets relating to historic acquisitions as well as previously capitalised software and research and development costs
where either these technologies or geographies are no longer core to Monitise s future technology strategy in the short term due to market
readiness

Impairment tests for goodwill
The Group annually tests goodwill for impairment or more frequently If there are indications that goodwill mught be impaired

Goodwill acquired tn a business combination 1s allocated at acguisition to the cash-generating unit {CGU ) that 1s expected to benefit from
that business combination The CGUs identified in the current year are the same as those identified in the prnior year

The carrying amounts of goodwill at 30 June post impairment and the CGUSs to which they are allocated are as follows

2016 2015

£ 000 £ 000

Americas - 116,629
Content 2,440 16,270
Create 4,000 24 500
MEA 1,000 5,761

7,440 163,160

In order to determine whether iImpairments are required the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the CGU or group of CGUs The
calculation 1s based on projecting future cash flows and a discount factor 1s apphed to obtain a value inuse which s the recoverable amount

Key assumptions

The value in use calculation includes estimates about the future financial performance of each CGU The cash flow projections cover five
years based on management-approved financial budgets for the first year and reflect management’s expectations of the medium-term
operating performance of the CGU and its growth prospects for the subsequent years Cash flows beyend the five year period are extrapolated
using the estimated growth rates stated below

The key assumptions in the value in use calculations are the revenue growth rates which directly influence the forecasted operating cash
flows as well as the discount rate applied In determining the key assumptions management has taken into account the current economic
chmate and the resulting impact on expected growth and discount rates as applicable to the Group s business and industry Average annual
revenue growth rates used reflect past expenence and are considered appropriate The discount rate appled represents a pre-tax rate that
reflects the Group s weighted average cost of capital adjusted for specific risks associated with each individuat CGU

Key assumptions used for the value in use calculations are as follows

2016 2005
Amaerkcas Content Create MEA Americas Content Create MEA
cGuy [ Gy cGU cGU cGU fecil] CGU
Discount rate 17.0% 12 0% 16.0% 18 0% 17 0% 12 0% 16 0% 18 0%
Medium-term revenue growth rate (16.2%) 13 2% 9 1% 8.7% 29 0% 17-19% 15 0% 18-231%
Long-term growth rate 2 3% 1.5% 2 0% 2 5% 25% 20% 20% 35%

Sensitivity analysis

The Group has conducted a sensitivity analysis on the carrying value of goodwill allocated to each CGU The Board has considered downside
scenarios including reductions in growth and increases to operating costs The following table sets out the impact of the individual sensitivitres
on goodwill and other intangible assets

2016 2015
Amaricas Content Croate MEA AMEncas Content Create MEA
Sensitised medium term growth rate (20.1%) 7 1% 4.6% 5.0% =% 10 0% 7 5% 50%
Potential iImpairment £3m £-m £1m £5m £147m £20m £0 5m £-m
Increase in operating costs 10,0% 10 0% 10.0% 10.0% 10 0% 10 0% 10 0% Q0%
Potential impawrment £3m £-m £2m £-m £-m £-m £-m E-m

The potential impairment stated above reftects the total impairment that would be charged against the assets allocated to that CGU It would
first be allocated against goodwill balances summarised above then to other assets allocated to that CGU
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13 Investments in subsidiaries

2016 2015
Company only £°000 £ 000
Cost
As at 1 July 250,382 247,829
Capital contributions relating to share-based payments (124} 2,553
As at 30 June 250,258 250,382
Provision
As at 1 July 63,199 -
Increase In provision 153,600 63,199
As at 30 June 216,799 63,199
Net book amount
As at 30 June 33,459 187,183

Investments 1n subsidiaries are recorded at cost which is the fair value of the consideration paid and this cost 1s tested periodically for
impairment As a consequence of the organisational changes conducted dunng the current and prior financial years the Company provided
for a number of Investments i subsidiary companies

The capital contribution relating to share-based payments relates to share options granted by the Company to employees of subsidiary
undertakings in the Group The capital contribution 1s a credit in the current year representing the impact of employees leaving the Group

A full list of the undertakings whose results or financial position are included within the Company s annual financial statements 1s set out

helow
Proportion of
Country of voting rights
tncorparation and ardinary
{or registration) Registered share capital
Name and operaticn number held Nature of business
Direct subsidiary undertakings
Monitise Group Limited United Kingdom 05530897 100% Intermediate holding company
Monitise Emerging Markets Limited' United Kingdom 06733473 100% Intermediate holding company
Menitrse Yazibm A S Turkey 100%¥ Mobile phene banking payments and commerce services
PT Monitise Mobile Indonesia Indonesta? 100% Mobile phone banking payments and commerce services
Monitise Asia Pacific Limited Hong Kong? 100% Mobile phone banking payments and commerce services
The Global Voucher Group Limited Urited Kingdom 09051128 100% Digital marketing solutions
Indirect subsidlary undertakings
Morutise Europe Limuted United Kingdom 04831976 100% Mobile phone banking payments and commerce services
Monitise International Limited United Kingdom 055556711 100% Mobile phone banking payments and commerce services
Monitise Americas, Inc USA 100% Mobile phone banking, payments and commerce services
Monitise Create Limited United Kingdom 07043006 100% Mobile iInnovatton and design agency
Grapple Mobile USA Inc UsA 100% Mobile innovation and design agency
Monitise the USA 100% Intermediate holding company
Monitise Cyprus Holdings No 1 Limited Cyprus 100% Intermediate holding company
Monitise Cyprus Holdings Ne 2 Limited Cyprus 100% intermediate holding company
eMerit Solutions Ltd United Kingdom 07190106 100% Intermediate holding company
Last Second Ticketing Ltd United Kingdom 07034829 100% Digital marketing so'utions
Mobile Money Network Limited United Kingdom 07153130 100% Non-trading
Vouchacha Ltd United Kingdom 06930720 100% Non-trading
Grapple Mobile Limited United Kingdom 05814266 100% Nen-trading
eMent Solutions (UK) Ltd United Kingdom 07741101 100% Nen-trading
Mornitise Africa (UK) Limited United Kingdom 06750077 100% Non-trading
Monitise Americas LLC USA 100% Non-trading
Monitise Singapore Private Limited
(in hquidation) Singapore 100% in members valuntary iguidation
Monitise Solutions (HK) Ltd Hong Kong 100% Non-trading
Monitise Hong Kong Ltd Hong Kong 100% Non-trading

Texermption trom audit for a subsidiary undertaking has been claimed for this company under Section 479C of the Companies Act 2006

?includes indirect hotdings
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14 Investments in joint ventures

2016 2015
Group £'000 E0CO
Cost
As at 1 July 940 529
Additional iInvestments 500 4,219
Share of losses {395) (3,788
Exchange differences (1) (20)
As at 30 June 1,044 940
Provision for impairment
As at 1 July 440 -
Increase In Provision 941 440
Utilisation of impairment provision (337) -
As at 30 June 1,044 440
Net book amount
As at 30 June - 500

The carrying amount of the investment compnses the cost of the investment together with the Group s share of post-acquisition losses The
Group s share of losses of joint ventures included i the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income is stated after the utilisation of
the iImpairment provisien

Movida India Private Limited

On 22 June 2010 the Group set up a joint venture in India with Visa International Services Association via Monitise Cyprus Holdings No 2
Limited an intermediate Group holding company diluting 1ts 100% shareholding of Momtise India Private Limited a company incorperated
inIndia to a 50% shareholding Monitise Indta Private Limited provided mabile phone-initiated banking and payments services 1n India On
19 July 201" Monitise India Private Limited changed 1ts name to Mowvida India Private Limited In March 2015 it was decided to wind down this
Jjoint venture and consequently, an impairment charge of £440,000 was recorded in the year ended 3Q June 2015 of this impairment provision
an amount of £337000 was utilised during the year to reflect the Group's share of losses Mowvida India Private Limited 1s & private company
and there 15 no quoted market pnce avallable for its shares

Syntheo Limited

On 30 June 2015 the Group entered into an agreement to set up a Jjoint venture with Banco Santander purchasing a 50% share in Syntheo
Limited, a company incorporated in England and Wales Syntheo Limited was established to invest in FinTech businesses with the potential
to redefine and support financial services globally During the vear ended 30 June 2015 the Group recognised revenue of £5042 000 from
Syrtheo Limited and as a result had provided for unrealised losses of £2 500000 in that year During the year ended 30 June 2016, the
Group recorded a provision of £941,000 against the remaining nvestment for this entity Syntheo Limited 1s 2 private company and there (s
no quoted market price avallable for its shares

Summansed financial information for joint ventures
summansed balance sheet

2015 2015
£000 £ 000

Current
Cash and cash equwvalents 1,066 682
Other current assets 63 75
Total current assets 1,129 757
Other current llablities {ncluding trade payables) 19) (201)
Total current liabilities (19) (201
Non-current
Assets 6,000 6,328
Net assets 7,110 6,884
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14 investments in joint ventures {continued)
Summarised financial information for joint ventures (continued)
Summarised statement of comprehensive iIncome

2016 2015

£000 £ 000

Revenue 270 2
Depreciatton and amortisation (166) (726)
Interest iIncome 7 32
Interest expense - (62)
Pre-tax loss {B52) (3,296)
Income tax expense 42 -
Post-tax loss (810) (3 296)
Other comprehensive Income - -
Total comprehensive expense (810) (3.296)

Dividends received from joint venture

The information above reflects the amounts presented in the financial statements of the joint ventures adjusted for differences in accounting
policies between the Group and the joint ventures (and not the Group s share of those amounts)

Reconcihiation of summarised financial information

The reconciliation of summarised financial information presented to the carrying amount of the interest in joint ventures 15 as follows

2016 2015
£'000 £000
Net assets at 1 July 6,884 1,747
Additronal investments 1,000 84327
Loss for the year (810) (3,296)
Exchange differences 36 4>
Net assets at 30 June 7,110 6,884
Group interest 1n Joint ventures 3,555 3442
Provision for unrealised profits on transactions with joint ventures £2.500) (2,502)
Impairment of Investments 1n joint ventures {1,055) (440>
Carrying value - 500
15 Trade and other receivables
Group Company
2016 2015 2006 2015
£000 £000 £'000 £ 000
Due within one year
Trade receivables 8,264 13,489 - -
Less provision for impairment of trade receivables €1,031) (376) - -
Trade receivablas - net 7,233 13,113 - -
Other taxes and social security 1,465 1.912 - 23
Other recervables 243 1,357 - 11
Accrued income 3,533 5,434 8 38
Prepayments 3,496 6,008 196 8
Amounts due from Group undertakings - - 79 3,506
Prepayments and other receivables 8,737 14,711 283 3,586
Total trade and other receivables due within cne year 15,970 27,824 283 3,586
Due after one year
Other debtors 370 - - -
Total other receivables 370 - - -

The maximum exposure to credit risk at 30 June 2016 1s the carrying value of each class of receivables mentioned above In determening the
recoverabihty of trade recewvables, the Group considers the ageing of each debtor and any c¢hange in the crrcumstances of the indnidual
receivable Due to this management believes there 1s no further credit nsk provision required tn excess of that stated above for doubtful

receivables Other receivables principally comprise deposits and employee related amounts
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15 Trade and other receivables (continued)
Included in accrued income faling due within one year 1s an amount of £500 000 (2015 £980 000) which relates to payments for a product
hcence

Amounts due from group undertakmgs relate to working capital funding As a consequence of the crganisational changes conducted, the
Company provided for a number of recervables from subsidiary companies that are not considered to be recoverable

The value of trade and other recevables quoted in the table above also represents the fair value of these items

Trade recewvables are considered impaired If they are not considered recoverable As at 30 June 2016, trade recervables of £1459 000
(2015 £1927000) were past due but not impaired The Group considers any change in the credit quality of trade receivables from the date

credit was initially granted up to the reporting date The concentration of credit risk 1s imited due to the quality of the customer base

The ageing analysis of trade receivables and impairment (s as follows

2006 2015
Trade Impalirmant Trade Impairment
recaivables provisicn receivables provision
£'000 £'000 £ 000 £ 000
Current and not impaired 5,774 - 11,186 -
Up to 3 months 1,624 (252) 465 -
% to 6 months 246 (164) 1,433 -
Qver & months 620 (615) 405 (376)
8,264 {1,031) 13 489 (376)
The carrying amounts of the Group s trade and other receivables are denorminated n the following currencies
2016 2015
£'000 £000
Pounds Sterling 11,797 19,720
US Dollars 2,068 5 266
Turkish Lira 923 2,056
Euros 620 141
Indonestan Rupiah 521 630
Canadian Dollars 41 1
Hong Kong Dollars - 10
15,970 27.824
Movemaents on the Group provision for impairment of trade receivables are as follows
2016 2018
£'000 £000
As at 1 July 376 625
Movement in provision 655 (249)
As at 30 June 1,031 376
There are no other financial assets that are past due or impaired
16 Cash and cash equivalents
Group Company
206 2015 2016 2015
£'000 £000 £'000 £ 000
Cash at bank and in hand 42,089 88,801 15,832 42,320
17 Net funds
Group Company
2016 2015 2006 2015
Note £'000 E 000 E'000 £ 000
Cash at bank and in hand 16 42,089 88,801 15,832 42,320
Finance leases 21 (1,809) (596) - -
Net funds 40,280 88 205 15,832 42,320
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18 Related parties

Group

Joint ventures

Movida India Private Limited

The Group has a 50% interest In a joint venture Mowvida India Private Limited Dunng the year revenue of £nil (2015 £714 000) was recognised
and costs of £ml (2015 £mil) were recharged to Movida Intia Private Limited The Group provided a capital contribution of £nil (2015
E£17194 QQ0) The outstanding receivable balance at 30 June 2016 was £ril (2015 £183 000) In trade receivables

Syntheo Limited

The Group has a 50% interest in a joint venture, Syntheo Lirmited, which was incorporated on 12 June 2015 During the year revenue of £nil
(2015 £5042,000) was recognised and costs of £nil (2015 £nil) were charged to Syntheo Limited The Group provided a capital contribution
of £500,000 (2015 £3 025000)

Further details on investments in joint ventures are included In note 14

Key management personnel
The compensation of key management personnel being Directors members of the Executive Management team and senior technical staff,
was as follows

2016 2015

£'000 £000

Short-term employee benefits 3,605 4,781
Post-employment benefits a5 71
Share-based payments 430 3,609
4,130 8,461

Details regarding Directors emoluments can be found in the Directors remuneration report on pages 20 to 22

Company

Subsidiares

The Company was recharged £2,329 000 (2015 £3,255,000) by subsidiaries for administration costs incurred on its behalf Amounts recewable
from subsidranes total £79 000 (2015 £3 506 000) which are payable on demand

19 Trade and other payables

Group Company
2006 2015 2016 2015
£000 £000 £'000 £ 000
Due within one year
Trade payables 4,337 11,534 220 a1
Other taxes and social secunity 2,407 3,671 - 11
Accruals 9,709 12002 1,783 762
Deferred income 4,340 6,216 - -
Other payables 834 1,071 2 -
Amounts due to Group undertakings - - 3,204 4,634
Other payables due within one year 17,290 22,960 4,989 5,407
Trade and other payables due within one year 21,627 34 494 5,209 5 498
Due after one year
Other payables 285 263 - -
Deferred income 665 3,673 - -
Other payables due after one year 950 3,936 - -
Total trade and other payables 22,577 38,430 5,209 5498

Trade and other payables principally comprise amounts outstanding for trade purchases ongoing costs and transfer from provisions The
Group has financial risk management policies in place to ensure that all payables are paid within the pre-agreed credit terms The Directors
consider that the carrying amount of trade payables approximates to thew fair value
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20 Provisions

Group Company
Re- Qnerous Re-

organisation contracts Total  organisation Total

Group £000 £ 000 £000 £000 £000
As at 1July 2015 - 29,858 29 858 - -
Additional provisions in the year 5,602 10,068 15,670 1,128 1,128
Release of provision (34) {8,227) (8.261) - -
Utiisation of provision (3393) (15 493) (18,886) (410) (410)
Exchange differences 28 471 499 - -
As at 30 June 2016 2,203 16,677 18,880 718 718
2016 2015 2016 2015

£'000 £ 000 E'000 £000

Due within one year 10,864 14,658 565 -
Due after one year 8,016 15,200 153 -

The additional provision for anerous contracts refates to those contracts under which the unavoidable costs of meeting the obligations under
the contract exceed the economic benefit expected to be received under it These include provision for surplus properties as a result of the
reorganisations undertaken and obligations associated with a number of contracts with a third party IT and business services provider
Additionally, provision has been made for the ongotng costs of closing the Group s Far East investments and the finalisation of the restructuring
activities

The release of provisions related to the successful renegotiation of onerous contracts which had been provided for in the prior year

21 Financial habilities

Group Company
2016 2015 2016 2015
Note £000 £ 000 £'000 E CGQO
Due within one year
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 23 - 9775 - 9,775
Finance leases 1,002 261 - -
Financial habilities due within one year 1,002 10,036 - 9,775
Due after ene year
Finance leases 807 335 - -
Financial habiities due after one year 807 335 - -
Total financial Habilities 1,809 10,371 - 9,775

The Group has teased certain of its office furniture and equipment and computer hardware under finance leases The average lease term is
batween three to five years The Group has options to purchase the equipment for a nominal amount at the end of the lease terms The
Group’s obligations under finance leases are secured by the lessors title to the leased assets

Financial llabilities include amounts In respect of contingent consideration on acguisiions which are determined on certam performance
criteria

Interest rates underlying all obhigations under finance leases are fixed at respective contract dates ranging from 2% to 14% per annum (2015
3% to 15%) Finance lease liabilities are payable as follows

Future muinimum lease Present value of minimum
payments lease payments
2016 2015 2016 2015
£°000 EOCO £'000 E 000
Less than one year 977 318 1,002 261
Between one and five years 892 362 807 335
1,869 680 1,809 586
Less future finance charges (60) (B4) - -
Present value of minimum lease payments 1,809 596 1,809 596

Monitise plc Annual Report 2016 53




Financial Statements

Notes to the consolidated financial statements

for the year ended 30 June 2016

22 Deferrad tax

The movement in the deferred income tax assets/(labilities) during the year is as follows

2016 2015
Group Note £000 £000
As at 1 July (10,208) (13,931)
Credited to Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income 9 9,763 4013
Charged to cther comprehensive income - exchange differences (576) (290)
As at 30 June (1,021) (10,208)

The movement in deferred iIncorme tax assets and habifittes during the year without taking into consiceration the offsetting of balances within

the same tax jurisdiction, i1s as follows

2016 2015
Tax losses Tax losses
Group £'000 £00C
Deferred tax assets
As at 1 July 2,683 4,793
Credit/(charge) to Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income 701 (2,110
As at 30 June 3,384 2,683
2016 2015
Acquisiton Acquisition
related Capitallsed related Capitahsed
intangible development Intangible  development
assets costs Total assets costs Total
Group £'000 £'000 £'000 E Q0O £ 000 £000
Deferred tax lhiabilities
As at 1July 10,208 2,683 12,891 13,931 4,793 18,724
(Credit)/charge to Consclidated Statement
of Comprehensive Income (9,750) 701 (9,049) (4 464) (2,110 (6 574)
Effect of change in tax rates a3 - 13) 451 - 451
Exchange differences 576 - 576 230 - 280
As at 30 June 1,021 3,384 4,405 10208 2,683 12891

Deferred tax assets and habilihes are offset where the Group has a legally enforceable right to do so The following 15 the analysis of the

deferred tax balances (after offset) for financial reporting purposes

2016 2015

£000 £ 000

Deferred tax assets - -
Deferred tax hlabilities (1,021) (10,208}
(1,021) (10,208)

The timing of the recoverability/(settlement) of the deferred tax assets/(habthties) I1s set out below
2016 2015
Oueo within Due after Due within Due after

one year one yoar Total ona year ang year Total

E'000 £000 £'000 £ 000 £000 £ 000

Deferred tax assets - 3,384 3,384 - 2,683 2,683
Deferred tax habilities (1,021) (3,384) (4,405) (2874 (10,017} (12 891>
(1,021) - (1,021) (2,874) (7.334) (10,208)

The amount of unutilised trading tax losses at 30 June 2016 for which a deferred tax asset has been recognised 15 £nil (2015 Enil)

The Group has unrecognised deferred tax assets of approximately £79 000,000 (2015 £7%000,000) that are avallable for offset against
future taxable profits of the companies in which the losses arose Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of these losses
where 1t 15 the view of the Directors that future taxable profits are not deemed probable to be availlable in the short term to offset against

these losses

Details of changes to tax rates are included in note 9
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23 Financlal instruments

Accounting classification of financial assets and habibities

Fair valve Other financial

through habihities at
Loans and proht amortised
recevables and loss cost Total
Group £ 000 £ 000 £ 000 £000
As at 30 June 2016
Cash and cash equivalents 42,089 - - 42,089
Trade & other recevables excluding non-financial assets 7,476 - - 7,476 |
Trade & other payables excluding non-financial habilities - - (7,863) (7,863) |
Finance lease kabihties - - (1,809) (1,809)
Total 49,565 - (9,672) 39,893
As at 30 June 2015
Cash and cash equivalents 88,801 - - 88,801
Trade & other receivables excluding non-financial assets 14 470 - - 14,470
Trade & other payables excluding non-financial iabilities - - {16 539) (16 539)
Contingent consideration liabilitves - (9,775) - (9,775
Finance lease liabilities - - (596) (596)
|
Total 103 271 (9,775) (17,135) 76,361 |
Farr value Other financial ‘
through habilities at
Loans and profit amortised
recevables and loss cost Total
Company E 000 £000 £ Q0O £000
As at 30 June 2016
Cash and cash equivalents 15,832 - - 15,832
Trade & other receivables excluding non-financial assets 79 - - 79
jrade & other payables excluding non-financial habilities - - (3,426) (3,426)
Total 15,911 - (3,426) 12,485
As at 30 June 2015
Cash and cash equivalents 42,320 - - 42,320
Trade & other recevables excluding non-financial assets 3.517 - - 3517
Trade & other payables excluding non-financial liabilities - - (4,725) (4,725)
Contingent consigeration habilities - (9775 - (9,775
Total 45 837 (9,775) (4,725) 31,337 I

Fair value higrarchy

The table below analyses financial instruments carned at fair value by the levels in the fair value hierarchy The different levels have been

defined as follows

Level 1  quoted prices {unadjusted) in active markets for identical habilities

Level 2 nputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1that are observable for the iability either directly (e g &s prices) or indwrectly

(e g derved from prices}

Level 3 inputs for the hability that are not based on observable market data

2016 2005
Level 3 Total Level 3 Total
£ 000 £'000 £ 000 £000
Group
As at 30 June
Contingent consideration habilities - - (9,775 (9,775)
Total - - (9,775) (9,775)
Company
As at 30 lune
Contingent consideration liabilittes - - {9,775) (9,775)
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23 Financial instruments (continued)

Level 3 financial instruments

Contingent consideration habilities are valued using an income approach based on expected future revenue and earmings The far value of
these habihties could change based on the expected future performance of the business to which they relate The following table presents
the changes in level 3 instruments

2016 20015

£'000 £ 000

As at 1July 9,775 14 556
Settlement of contingent consideration (9,775) (7.311)
Change in fair value recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income - 2530
As at 30 June - 9,775

The contingent consideration hability at 30 June 2015 has been settled subsequent to that year end at the amount included above

24 QOrdinary shares, share premium and other reserves
Altotted and fully paid £0 Ot nominal value shares

Ordinary Share

Number shares premium

of shargs £000 £000

As at 1 July 2014 1,944,806,182 19,448 336,990
Issue of new shares 207,269,385 2,072 47,639
Exercise of share options and warrants 16,155,869 162 717
Cost of share 1ssue - - (1,625}
As at 1 July 2015 2,168,231,436 21,682 383,721
Issue of new shares 79,091,540 791 -
Exercise of share options and warrants 4,620,037 46 -
As at 30 June 2016 2,251,943,013 22,519 383,721

Reconciliation of shares 1ssued
Ordinary
Ordinary shares to be Share Merger

Number of shares 1ssued premium reserve Total

shares £000 £ 000 £000 £000 £000

As at 1 July 20014 1944,806,182 19,448 2,511 336,990 221,539 580,488
December 2014 placing 161 327,150 1,613 - 45,966 - 47,579
Employee share-based payment exercises 16,155,869 162 - 717 - 879
Share-based payments to non-employees 97,922 1 - 48 - 49
Issue of shares relating to prior year business combmations 45,844,313 458 - - 7,133 7.591
As at 1 July 2015 2,168,231,436 21,682 2,511 383,721 228,672 636,586
Employee share-based payment exercises 4,620,037 46 - - - 46
Issue of shares relating to prior year business combinations 79,091 540 791 - - 9511 10,302
As at 30 June 2016 2,251,943,013 22,519 2,511 383,721 238,183 646,934

Share capital and share premium
In December 2014 the Group issued 161 327150 new Ordinary shares through a placing with Santander Telefonica and MasterCard

Durtng the current year 4 620 037 (2015 16 155 869) new Crdinary shares were I1ssued as part of an exercise of share options and warrants
(see note 25) and a further il (2015 97,922) new Ordinary shares were 1ssued to non-employees in lieu of services provided to the Group

Durning the current year, 79 091540 (2015 45,844,313) new Ordinary shares were issued in relatign tg prior year business combinations
During the current year the company issued warrants over 3m Ordinary shares of 1p each In the Company at a price of 2 B3p each

Ordinary shares to be issued

Crdinary shares to be 1ssued represents the future 1ssue of shares in respect of the settlement of deferred consideration for the acquisition
of The Global Voucher Group Limited including the trade and certain assets and liabilities of Markco Media on 26 June 2014 On 7 July 2016
the Company 1ssued 43 770 351 shares in respect of the finahsation of this acquisition

Other reserves
The merger reserve of £238183 000 (2015 £228 672 000) relates to the de-merger from Morse plc the previous parent company of the
Monitise Group of companies and acquisitions where the consideration has been share-based

Relating to acquisitions the difference between the far value of consideration and the nomanal value of shares issued has been credited to
the merger reserve on 1ssue of the shares with a transfer from the Ordinary shares to be issued reserve where necessary
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Other reserves (continued)

The reverse acquisition reserve of £25 321000 (2015 £25 321000) was also created at the tume of the de-merger Under IFRS 3 "Business
Combinations , this transaction was accounted for as a reverse acquisition with the legal subsidiary having been deemed to have acquired
the legal parent

The foreign currency translation reserve 1s used to record exchange differences arising from the translation of foreign subsidiaries and
investments in joint ventures

The Group share-based payment reserve at 30 June 2016 1s £56,587,000 (2015 £40,863 000) and 1s discussed in detail in note 25

For the purposes of presentation on the Censohdated and Company Statement of Financial Position the share-based payment reserve
merger reserve and reverse acquisition reserve have been combined and disclosed as Other reserves

25 Share-based payments

Equity-settled share-based payments plans

The Group operates a number of equity-settled share-based payment plans A summary of the man terms of the arrangements 1s given
below with particular reference made to the terms of those grants for which the share-based payment expense has been recogmsed

The Group recognised total expenses in refation to share-based payments as follows

2016 2015

£'000 £ 000

Equity-settled share-based payments (3,612) 5834

Share-based payments for prior business combinations 20,080 22,094

Share 1ssue charges to non-employees in heu of services prowvided to the Group - 49

Total 16,468 27,977
Movements in the number of share options outstanding and therr related weighted average exercise prices are as follows

2016 2015

Waighted Weighted

average average

Numbaer of axorcise Number of exercise

Group options price aptions price

As at 1 July 100,994,594 5.9p 104,137,670 58p

Granted 111,968,107 l4p 24,160,743 72p

Exercised (4,620,037 10p (16,155 869) 53p

Lapsed (92,622,811) 3 6p (11,147,950) 100p

As at 30 June 115,719,853 3.4p 100,994,594 S 9%

The weighted average share price at the date of exercise for options exercised during the year was 35p (2015 28 3p) At 30 June 2016
13 394 0B84 options were exercisable (2015 14 816 331) The weighted average exercise pnce of exercisable options was 20 8p (2015 110p)
Options outstanding at 30 June 2016 have a range of exercise prices of 10p to 45 6p (2015 10p to 45 6p)

Sharesave Scheme ( SAYE)

The Monitise Sharesave Scheme enables UK staff to acquire shares in the Company through maonthly savings of up to £500 over a three year
penod, at the end of which and subject to interest rates in effect they also receive a tax free bonus The savings and bonus may then be
used to purchase shares at the option price which s set at the beginning of the invitation period and usually at a discount of 20% to the then
prevaithng market price of the Company's shares For the optron to vest staff must remain as employees of Monitise over a three year period
and continue to centribute

in calculating the fair value of the SAYE scheme the Group has used a Black Scholes model and an assumption of a nil dividend yield
The following table sets out the other assumptions made during the current and comparative years

Grant date 9 Nov 2015 18 Nov 2014
Share price atissue date 36p 29 8p
Exercise price 22p 21 8p
Far value per option 24p 13 4p
Number granted 31,169,819 6,767,585
Risk free rate used in valuation 091% 091%
Volatibity used in vatuation 87 0% 54 3%
Expected life (years) 306 303
Expected exercise date used in valuation 1Dec 2018 1 Dec 2017
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25 Share-based payments (continued)

Equity-settled share-based payments plans (continued)

Performance Share Plan ('PSP")

A Performance Share Plan 1s In place Options over shares may be awarded conditional on the achievement of performance conditions with
vesting typically after three years subject to the staff remaining employed by the Group, or may be awarded under this plan with no
performance conditions such that for the option to vest, staff must remain as employees of Monttise over the vesting period

Cn the acquisition of Monitise Amencas tnc (previcusty Clairmail inc ) outstanding options held by Moritise Americas Inc employees were
replaced by PSP share options over Monitise plc shares These PSP options vested over their onginal vesting perods as granted The portion
of the provisional fair value of these options relating to pre-acquisition service was included in the acquisition consideration The Group
recognises a share-based payment charge in the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income over the remainder of the vesting period

On 26 May 2015 the Group modified a number of the unvested PSP awards with share price linked performance conditions Performance
conditions were amended such that in order for the options to vest the Group must achieve set targets for revenue, EBITDA and for some
grants user numbers Vesting periods were extended and clawback and malus conditions introduced The incremental fair value of the awards
as a result of these modifications was £185 000 The ncremental fair value 1s measured by comparing the fair value of the instrument
immediately before and immediately after the modification

Alongside the awards made during the year ended 30 June 2016 certain awards from previous years were cancelled n order to maximise the
effectiveness of current incentives whilst operating within avalable headroom constraints

Assumptions used in the valuation of share-based payment arrangements

In calculating the fair value of equity-settlied share-based payment arrangements the Group has usec a Monte Carlo model In cases where
market-based performance conditions have to be met and the Black Scholes model where the share option has only non-market conditions
Management has made a number of assumptions in respect of the calculation of an IFRS 2 charge for the Monitise Group s employee share
option schemes

The expected life of the options 15 the average penod to exercise which has been assumed to occur and I1s not necessarily indicative of exercise
patterns that may occur Volatility was calculated with reference to similar FTSE AIM entittes and the historical performance of the Company
which may not necessarily be the actual outcome The risk free interast rate s the expected return on UK Gilts over the expected term of the
options

Performance conditions

Except as detailed 1n the table below for certain options 1ssued vesting of the Performance Share Plan 1s now dependent on performance
conditions based on achievement of certain revenue, EBITDA and user number targets The Remuneration Commuttee also reserves the nght
to reduce the number of QOrdinary shares over which awards vest If overall financial performance 1s not adeguately reflected in the targets
achieved

The following table sets out the assumptions for schemes with revenue EBITDA and user number vesting hurdles In calculating the fair value
of these a Black Scholes model and an assumption of a nil dividend yield have been used

Grant/modification date 26 May 201526 May 2015 21 Apr 2015
(Modified) (Modified) (Grant)
Share price at 1ssue date 10 0p 10 0p 14 Op
Exercise price 1.0p 10p 10p
Fair value per option 91p 91p 11 5p
Number granted/modified 26 850,836 21,810332 3,000,000
Risk free rate used In valuation 0 90% 0 66% 079%
Volatility used in valuation 63 B% 68 5% 62 45%
Expected life (years) 353 253 362
Expected exercise date used in valuation 3 Dec 2018 4 Dec 2017 3 Dec 2018

The following table sets out the assumptions for schemes with revenue and EBITDA vesting hurdles In calculating the fair value of these a
Black Scholes model and an assumption of a ni! dividend yield have been used

Grant/modification date 17 Mar 2016 2 Oct 2015 26 May 2015
(Grant) (Grant) {(Modified)
Share price at 1ssue date 27p 29p 100p
Exercise price 10p 10p 10p
Fair value per option 27p 22p S90p
Number granted/modifiec 44 654,500 25,770,000 14,715,332
Risk free rate used in valuation 048% 072% 0 55%
volatility used in valuation 95 2% 86 2% 79 4%
Expected lWife (years) 300 317 153
Expected exercise date used in valuation 17 Mar 2019 2 Dec 2018 5 Dec 2016
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Performance conditions {continued)

The following table sets out the assumptions for schemes where employees must only remain with Monitise for the options to vest In
calculating the fair value of these a Black Scholes mode! and an assumption of a nil dividend yield have been used

Grant date 30 Jun 2016 17 Mar 2016 2 Oct 2015 19 Dec 2014 28 Sep 2014 26 Sep 2014
Share price at 1ssue date 27p 27p 29 26 Op 30 3p 30 3p
Exercise price 10p 22p 10p 218p 10p 10p
Fair value per option 21p 17p 22p 14 4p 29 3p 29 3p
NMumber granted 2,725,000 1,168,788 & 480,000 468 158 75,000 75,000
Risk free rate used in valuation 017% 0 48% 072% 0 86% 110% 077%
Volatility used in valuation a5 6% a5 2% 86 2% 55 0% 53 5% 57 6%
Expected life (years) 271 271 317 295 275 175
Expected exercise date used in valuation 17 Mar 2019 1 Jun 2019 2 Dec 2018 1Dec 2017 26 Jun 2017 26 Jun 2016

The following table sets out the assumptions for schemes with share price vesting hurdles of between 75p and 95p In calculating the fair
value of these a Monte Carlo maodel and an assumption of 2 nil dividend yield have been used

Grant date 15 Sep 2014 15 Sep 2014
Share pnice at 1ssue date 44 0p 44 Op
Exercise price 10p 10p
Fair value per option 17 9p 19 1p
Number granted 4,000,000 9,700,000
Risk free rate used in vatuation 123% 123%
Volatihty used in valuation 50 4% 50 4%
Expected Wfe (years) 300 300
Expected exercise date used in valuation 15 Sep 2017 15 Sep 2016

26 Employee benefit expense and Directors’ emcluments

Group
2016 2015
£ 000 £ 000
Employees (including Directors)
Wages and salaries 37,696 57,116
Social security costs 5,649 7.910
Share-based payments {3,612) 5,834
Other pension costs 1,124 1.500
40,857 72,360
Monthly average number of employees (including Directors)
Management and administration 81 138
Sales and technical 554 811
635 949
The Group has defined contribution pension schemes avallable to all employees
Company
2016 2015
Directors’ emoluments £000 £ 000
Aggregate emeluments 770 1818
Gain made on exercise of share options 6 653
Pension contributions 23 50
799 2,519
2016 2015
Emoluments of the highest paid Director £ 000 E QOO
Aggregate emoluments including £5 550 (2015 £652,500) in respect of gain made on exercise of share options 332 979
Pension contributions 18 17
Total 150 996

The number of Directors who were accrung benefits under defined contribution schemes during the year was three (2015 five) Further
informatien m respect of indwvidual Director emoluments 15 given in the Directors remuneration report on pages 20 to 22
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27 Reconciliation of net loss to net cash used in operating activities

Group Company
2016 2015 2016 2015
£000 £ 000D E'000 £ 000
Loss before income tax (243,082) (227,433) (201,627) (438,432
Adjustments for
Depreciation and impairments to property plant and equipment 6,082 5,705 - -
Amortisation and impairments to iIntangible assets 198,193 113,051 - -
Impairment of (nvestments in joint ventures 941 440 - -
Share-based payments 16,468 27.977 17,704 23,996
{Profit)/loss on disposal of property plant and equipment {35) 24 - -
Finance (costs)/income - net (1,775) 521 (257) (370)
Exceptional costs 3,492 34,151 179,865 411,204
Share of post-tax loss of joint ventures 53 3,788 - -
Operating cash flows before movements in working capital {19,658) (41,776) (4,315%) (3.602)
Decrease/(increase) in recevables 15,292 9.055 (21,480) (90,388)
Decrease in payables (19,100) (16 968) (449) (5,090)
Increase/(decrease) In provisions 1,597 (656) {18) -
Cash used in operations (21,869) (50 345) (26,262) (99,080)

Exceptional costs for the Company represent provisions against investments in and balances due from group undertakings and other
exceptional items

28 Commitments, contingencies and guarantees
The Group leases its office premises under non-cancellable operating lease agreements The Group had future aggregate minimum lease
payments under non-cancellable operating leases as follows

2016 2015

£000 £ 000

Within 1 year 4,464 5375
within 2 to 5 years 16,611 20,418
After 5 years 2,472 3,371
Total 23,547 29164

Included within operating lease commitments are amounts for property leases which have been treated as onerous The amount in respect
of these leases included in the minimum lease payments above, due within one year is £2,563 000 (2015 £1162 000) and due within two to
five years I1s £11503 000 (2015 £3 966 000) During the year the Group has sublet certain properties inciuded within the commitments listed
above which will reduce the amounts payable in future pericds

The Group had capital commitments of £84 Q00 at the end of the year (2015 Enil) for capital expenditure contracted for but not provided
for in the financial statements

Legal contingencies

No member of the Group 1s or has been invelved in any governmental legal or arbitration proceedings and the Directers are not aware of any
such proceedings pending or threatened by or against the Group during the 12 months preceding the date of these financial statements
which may have or have had, in the recent past a significant effect on the financial position or profitability of the Group

Meobite VPT Limited has i1ssued a UK patent infringement ¢laim against Monitise International Limited {(formerly known as Monitise Limited)
and other related parties Following advice from leading counsel the Directors believe that Monitise s business activities In the UK do not
infringe any vahd claim of Mobile VPT 5 patent and that the Mobile VPT patent may be invalid Momitise continues to monitor the status of
the proceedings since they were stayed in October 2007 but to date and in hght of the advice received from leading counsel no provision
has been reflected in the financial statements

Guarantees
There are a number of operationai and financial guarantees given by the Company and certain subsidiary companies in each case on behalf
of other subsidiary entities

The Company had no other commitments or contingenc:es at the end of the year
29 Company statement of comprehensive income

As permitted by Section 408 of the Companies Act 2006, the Company has not presented 1its own Statement of Comprehensive Income and
related notes The loss for the financial year of the Company was £201627 000 (2015 £438 432 000)
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